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At Pratham EPC Projects Limited, our story is one of grit, growth, and grounded 

excellence. From humble beginnings to becoming a listed public entity, we have 

evolved into a backbone of India’s pipeline infrastructure. We build the unseen 

but essential arteries that power industry, irrigate farmlands, and deliver energy 

to homes and factories across the nation.

Engineering India’s Arteries. Building Its Future.

Our strength lies in unmatched execution, domain specialization, and our 

capacity to deliver integrated EPC solutions across oil & gas, water, and industrial 

infrastructure. Our resilience comes from a culture of accountability, safety, and 

a relentless pursuit of quality—even in the most challenging environments. When 

the economy needs ow--be it energy, water, or structural development—it ows 

through the infrastructure that Pratham engineers.
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We believe that engineering excellence is a patriotic act—one that shapes the 

destiny of a developing nation brick by brick, pipeline by pipeline. By executing 

large-scale, mission-critical projects across the expanse of India—from urban 

corridors to remote rural belts—we catalyze national infrastructure programs 

and energize private industrial growth. Every structure we raise and every pipeline 

we lay echoes our commitment to empowering the Indian economy from its 

very foundation.

Execution Highlights

• Rs.131.84 Cr worth of strategic projects executed for GAIL, SunPetro, Gujarat Gas, 

Sabarmati Gas, and BPCL-Adani.

• Rs.296 Cr+ in ongoing EPC orders across multiple verticals and geographies.

• Rs.497 Cr—our largest single project till date from SunPetro—secured and under 

rapid execution.

Whether urban gas pipelines, high-pressure petroleum infrastructure, or complex 

horizontal drilling, Pratham EPC delivers at scale, with speed and safety.
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To be a leading force in transforming 

India’s infrastructure landscape by 

delivering innovative, sustainable, 

and reliable engineering solutions 

across the oil, gas, and water sectors 

— contributing to national growth 

and global energy transition.

Our Vision
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Our Mission
At Pratham EPC Projects Limited, 

our mission is to deliver end-to-end 

construction excellence through 

cutting-edge technology, ethical 

practices, and a customer-first 

approach. We strive to exceed client 

expectations by ensuring quality, 

safety, and timely execution across 

every project, while empowering 

communities and fostering a culture 

of continuous improvement and 

sustainable development.
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What Makes Us 

Different?

Execution at Scale and Speed:

We don’t just meet deadlines—we redefine them.  Our 

horizontal drilling, high-volume pipeline laying, and 

integrated civil-mechanical-electrical project  

capabilities allow us to achieve execution speeds well 

beyond industry averages.
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Digital-Ready, Safety-First:

We integrate digital tools for project monitoring and 

adhere to rigorous ISO-certified safety systems. Our 

project sites are governed by real-time controls, 

predictive maintenance, and 100% adherence to 

compliance protocols.

Built on Trust and Precision

With skilled professionals, a network of trusted 

suppliers, and proven partnerships with India’s top 

gas and petrochemical firms, we deliver with precision 

and transparency.
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Beyond Infrastructure:

A Purpose Led Organisation
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People First

We invest in our people through training, safety awareness, and skill 

certification. Every project is an opportunity to empower not just our 

employees, but the local communities where we work.

Planet Focused

Our environmental commitment goes beyond compliance. We adopt 

construction practices that aim to reduce ecological disruption, 

optimize resource use, and promote long-term sustainability. By 

maintaining responsible site operations, minimizing land disturbance, 

and prioritizing environmentally sensitive solutions, we contribute to 

building a greener and more resilient infrastructure network.

Communities Uplifted

True progress begins at our doorstep. At Pratham, we are committed 

to creating positive change in the communities where we have a 

meaningful presence. Our CSR e�orts are rooted in compassion and 

responsibility—focusing on the well-being of local communities 

through meaningful initiatives in education, healthcare, environment, 

and livelihood. By staying connected to those around us, we strive to 

create impact that is lasting and impactfull.
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ANNUAL CHARTS 

Strategic Outlook

With the Indian government’s continued focus 

on energy security, water infrastructure, and 

urban development, the demand for reliable 

EPC execution partners is set to surge.

Pratham EPC Projects Limited is well 

positioned to:

• Expand into newer markets and states

• Integrate AI-driven execution monitoring

• Grow margins through better capital utilization

• Partner with global EPC leaders on mega projects
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We are proud to share a pivotal milestone in Pratham’s 

growth story: the successful incorporation of our rst 

international wholly owned subsidiary — Pratham International 

Contracting LLC – OPC — in the United Arab Emirates.

This marks the beginning of our strategic foray into 

international markets, with the UAE serving as our operational 

gateway to the wider Middle East. As part of this breakthrough, 

we have secured a marquee project valued at USD 19.75 

million, currently being executed with the expertise of over 

250 professionals deployed on ground.

While our roots remain rmly in India, this expansion signals 

our readiness to deliver excellence across borders. Looking 

ahead, we aim to explore opportunities across Dubai, Saudi 

Arabia, and the broader MENA region—leveraging our proven 

capabilities to build sustainable infrastructure on a global scale.

This step represents more than just geographic expansion—it 

reects our long-term vision of becoming a respected 

international EPC player, driven by quality, trust, and execution 

strength.

With the continued support of our partners, investors, and 

team, we are condent in our ability to create lasting value 

and set new benchmarks—regionally and globally.
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Closing Note:
From the first weld to the final valve, every connection we 

create sets development in motion. At Pratham, we don't just 

lay infrastructure—we lay the groundwork for India's progress.

We are not just executing projects. We are building India's 

future, one artery at a time.

Pratham EPC Projects Limited

Where infrastructure begins. And the nation grows.
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Looking Ahead: A Message from the Chairman

As we step into the next phase of our growth journey, I am filled with 

immense pride and optimism about the future of Pratham EPC Projects 

Limited. The past year has been marked by strategic milestones and 

project triumphs that reinforce our leadership in the infrastructure sector.

In April 2024, we were awarded a major EPC contract valued at ₹497 

crores by Sun Petro Chemicals, reflecting a ~25% uplift over our previous 

order book. This landmark win includes the engineering and construction 

of onshore/o�shore crude oil pipelines in the Gulf of Khambhat and 

multiple fields across Gujarat, to be executed over a 36-month timeline.

Throughout the FY 2023–24 and FY 2024–25, we continued our growth 

trajectory with a portfolio of eight major ongoing projects worth ₹296.66 

crores, spanning sectors such as oil & gas, industrial utilities, and water 

transmission. Seven of these projects are currently under execution with 

confirmed purchase orders in place, a�irming our delivery momentum and 

execution reliability.

In June 2025, we achieved another strategic milestone with the 

incorporation of Pratham International Contracting LLC–OPC, our wholly 

owned subsidiary in Abu Dhabi, UAE. This initiative marks our o�icial entry 

into the Middle East—a region rich in opportunities across the energy and 

infrastructure landscape. This subsidiary is empowered to initiate project 

execution with financial resilience and operational readiness from day one.

This expansion is more than geographic—it represents a strategic 

transformation. Our UAE base will act as a springboard for deeper 

engagement in the GCC, leveraging our capabilities honed in India to 

address evolving demands across borders. We are firmly committed to 

evolving as a globally relevant EPC enterprise—technically sound, 

operationally excellent, and globally agile.
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In line with national infrastructure goals and global sustainability trends, 

we continue to invest in smarter solutions, digital tools, and greener 

practices. Our “safety-first” philosophy, coupled with a strong 

performance mindset, is what keeps us at the forefront of EPC execution 

in the country and now on the global stage.

With revenues growing at a CAGR of 28% over the past three years, and 

an unexecuted order book that o�ers clear visibility for the next 24–30 

months, we stand on solid financial and operational ground.

“We don’t just build pipelines and plants—we build pathways for progress, 

purpose, and prosperity.”

Thank you for your continued support. Let’s build the future—together.

Warm regards

Pratik Kumar Vekariya

Chairman & Managing Director

Pratham EPC Projects Limited
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Mr. Pratikkumar Maganlal Vekariya
Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. Pratikkumar Maganlal Vekariya serves as the Chairman 

and Managing Director of the Company. He brings over 17 

years of comprehensive experience in the Oil & Gas and 

Water Irrigation sectors. His core competencies include 

planning, designing, and executing large-scale pipeline 

projects, with a particular focus on gas and water pipeline 

systems.

Mr. Vekariya possesses hands-on expertise in mainline 

welding, tie-ins, hydro testing, coating, and pipeline 

commissioning, underpinned by strong project planning and 

quality assurance capabilities. As the strategic head of the 

company, he oversees its overall operations, spearheads key 

initiatives, and ensures the timely and quality-driven 

execution of projects, thereby driving operational excellence 

across all functions.
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Mr. Nayankumar Manubhai Pansuriya
Whole-Time Director

Mr. Nayankumar Manubhai Pansuriya is the Whole-Time 

Director of the Company, with more than 16 years of 

experience in Oil & Gas and Water Irrigation Project 

Management. He is adept at managing project schedules 

and budgets through e�ective coordination, issue resolution, 

and technical oversight.

He has a robust background in leading design teams, utilizing 

AutoCAD for rendering and cost estimation, and ensuring 

seamless project delivery. Mr. Pansuriya currently leads the 

Business Development, Procurement, and Project Execution 

departments, playing a vital role in the company’s growth 

and project success.
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Mr. Abhayapada Sarangi
Independent Director

Mr. Abhayapada Sarangi, Independent Director, brings over 

15 years of experience in Project Management across 

Irrigation, Water Supply, and Sewerage infrastructure. He 

specializes in overall project monitoring, including the review 

of work programs, MIS reporting, budget analysis, and cash 

flow management.

His responsibilities include ensuring contractual compliance, 

adherence to project milestones, vendor coordination, 

material procurement, stakeholder engagement, and timely 

payment realization. He regularly attends client meetings 

to monitor progress and ensure e�icient execution and 

successful project delivery.
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Mr. Mehul Thummar
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Mehul Thummar, Non-Executive Director, brings over 

9 years of industry experience spanning Supply Chain, 

Manufacturing, Finance, and Healthcare domains. In 

addition, he is a Microsoft Certified Full Stack .NET Developer 

with over 10 years of technical experience in software 

development.

His expertise spans the entire software development lifecycle 

(SDLC), including front-end and back-end development, 

automation testing, cloud technologies (Azure and AWS), 

and Agile project management. His technical acumen 

contributes valuable insights to the company's digital 

transformation and process optimization initiatives.
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Ms. Garima Rajput
Independent Director

Ms. Garima Rajput, Independent Director, o�ers over 12 years 

of experience in Operations and Customer Relationship 

Management within the banking and financial services sector. 

She has a strong command of regulatory compliance, 

operational e�iciency, and strategic planning

She is well-versed in analyzing market trends, identifying key 

opportunities, and supporting the development of innovative 

customer-centric strategies. Her contributions enhance 

organizational performance and strengthen stakeholder 

engagement.
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Reference Information:

Registered Office:

A/1101, Sankalp Iconic Tower, Iskon, Ambli Rd, Vikram Nagar, Ahmedabad, 

Gujarat 380058.

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent for Equity Shares:

MUFG INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (Formerly Link Intime India Private Limited)

5th Floor, 506-508, Amarnath Business Centre-1 (ABC-1), Beside Gala 

Business Centre, Ahmedabad, 380009.

P: +91 79 26465179 (Extn: 7910) 

M: +91 9824127223

WEBSITE:- www.in.mpms.mufg.com

EMAIL:- Insta@in.mpms.mufg.com

Depositories:

• National Securities Depository Limited

• Central Depository Services (India) Limited

Shares Listed at:
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (Emerge)

Prathamaʼs Subsidiary Companies (As on 31st March, 2025)

Pratham International Contracting LLC-OPC (Abu Dhabi), UAE.

Company Secretary:

• Ms. Palak Sharma.

Auditors:
• V C A N & Co-(Statutory Auditors).

• Rohan Thakkar & Co-(Internal Auditors).

• M/s Viral A Garachh (Practicing Company Secretary)-(Secreterial Auditor).
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PRATHAM EPC PROJECTS LIMITED
[CIN: L45200GJ2014PLC081119]

TH11  ANNUAL REPORT 24-25

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: Mr. Pra�kkumar M. Vekariya (Chairman & Managing Director)
  Mr. Nayankumar M. Pansuriya (Whole Time Director) 
  Mr. Mehul Thummar (Director)
  Ms. Garima Rajput (Independent Director)
  Mr. Abhaya Pada Sarangi (Independent Director)

MANAGEMENT TEAM : Mr. Yogesh Joglekar (Chief Financial Officer)
  Ms. Palak Sharma (Company Secretary)

REGISTERED OFFICE     : A-1101, Sankalp Iconic Tower, Opp. Vikram Nagar,
                           Iskon Temple cross Road, S.G. Highway 
                            Ahmedabad – 380058             

STATUTORY AUDITORS: M/s. V C A N & Co., 
                            Chartered Accountants,
                            Ahmedabad

SECRETARIAL                 : M/s. Viral A. Garachh,
AUDITORS                       Company Secretaries,  

                            Ahmedabad

BANKERS                        : ICICI Bank Limited
                                              HDFC Bank Limited,
                                              Yes Bank

REGISTRAR & SHARE   :  MUFG INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
                                              (Formerly Link In�me India Private Limited)
                                              C-101, Embassy 247, L B S Marg, 
                                              Vikhroli (West) Mumbai 400083

TRANSFER AGENTS      :  506-508, Amarnath Business Centre-1 (ABC-1),  
                       Besides Gala Business Centre,

  Near St. Xavier’s College Corner,
  Off C. G. Road, Ahmedabad – 380006 

WEBSITE                        :  www.prathamepc.com 

Important Communica�on to Members

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a ‘Green Ini�a�ve in the Corporate Governance’ by allowing paperless 
compliances and has issued circulars sta�ng that service of no�ce/ documents including Annual Report can be sent by email 
to its members. To support this green ini�a�ve of the Government in full measure, members who have not registered their 
email addresses, so far, are requested to register their KYC & email addresses with RTA & in respect of electronic holding 
with the Depository through their concerned Depository Par�cipant. 
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PRATHAM EPC PROJECTS LIMITED

NOTICE OF THE 11TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

thNo�ce is hereby given that the 11  Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) of the members of Pratham EPC Projects Limited will be 
held as under to transact the following businesses:

th
· Date: Tuesday, 30  September, 2025

· Time: 03.00 P.M. (IST)

· Venue: Registered Office of the Company at A-1101, Sankalp Iconic, Opp. Vikram Nagar, Iscon Temple Cross Road, 
S.G. Highway, Ahmedabad – 380054.

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt:

(i) The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, 
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and

(ii) The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, 
together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Mehul Nanjibhai Thummar (DIN: 10211744), who re�res by rota�on pursuant to 
Sec�on 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. Ra�fica�on of u�liza�on of IPO proceeds for purchase of machinery and its subsequent sale to the Wholly 
Owned Subsidiary (WOS).

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as an Ordinary 
Resolu�on:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder, and in line 
with the disclosure requirements under Regula�on 32 of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015, and other applicable provisions, if any, the Members of the Company do hereby take note of and 
ra�fy the u�liza�on of IPO proceeds for the purchase of machinery and subsequent opera�onal transfer/sale to its 
wholly owned subsidiary, Pratham EPC Interna�onal LLC OPC, Abu Dhabi, which is in line with the business of the 
company as stated by company in its prospectus, for its efficient deployment and business implementa�on.

4. Authority to borrow money in excess of paid-up share capital and free reserves under Sec�on 180(1)(c) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as a Special Resolu�on:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of all earlier resolu�ons passed by the members of the Company in this regard and 
pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modifica�on(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the �me being in 
force), consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to borrow from 
�me to �me, any sum or sums of money, which together with the monies already borrowed by the Company (apart 
from temporary loans obtained from the Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business), may exceed the 
aggregate of the paid-up share capital, free reserves and securi�es premium of the Company, provided that the total 
amount so borrowed shall not exceed Rs. 1000 crore (Rs One thousand crores) at any point of �me.”
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PRATHAM EPC PROJECTS LIMITED

5. Authority to sell, lease, mortgage or otherwise dispose of the whole or substan�ally the whole of the undertaking(s) 
of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as a Special 
Resolu�on:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of all earlier resolu�ons passed by the members of the Company in this regard and 
pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, 
and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modifica�on(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the �me 
being in force), consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to create mortgage (s) and/or charge (s) and/or 
hypotheca�on (s),  in such form and manner and with such ranking and at such �me and terms as the Board may 
determine, on all or any of its movable and / or immovable proper�es and assets of the Company wherever situated 
both present and future or to sell, lease, or otherwise dispose of the whole or substan�ally the whole of the 
undertaking(s) of the Company in favour of Financial Ins�tu�on (s)/ Bank(s)/ Lender (s)/ Agent (s)/ Trust (s) for 
securing the borrowings availed/ to be availed by the Company, by way of loan (s) and/or securi�es issued/ to be 
issued by the Company �me to �me, subject to the limits specified under sec�on 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 
2013”

6. Applica�on of Preferen�al Issue Proceeds.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as a Ordinary 
Resolu�on:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules (including any 
statutory modifica�on or re-enactment thereof for the �me being in force), and SEBI (ICDR) Regula�on 2018 and in 
par�al modifica�on of the resolu�on passed by the members of the Company for approval of the Preferen�al Issue 
of 4,52,489 (Four Lakh Fi�y-Two Thousand Four Hundred Eighty-Nine) equity shares amoun�ng to ₹10,00,00,069 

th
(Rupees Ten Crore and Sixty-Nine only) passed on 12  March, 2025, consent of the members of the Company be and 
is hereby accorded to u�lise the proceeds of the said preferen�al issue, in addi�on to the purposes stated earlier, 
also for the purpose of investment in, loan to, or business expansion of the Company’s subsidiary(ies), including its 
wholly-owned subsidiary(ies), whether in India or abroad, to support ongoing and upcoming projects and to achieve 
be�er growth opportuni�es.

7. Approval of loans, guarantees or securi�es under sec�ons 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as Special Resolu�on:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 185, 186 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read with the relevant rules made thereunder (including any statutory 
modifica�on(s), clarifica�on(s), subs�tu�on(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the �me being in force), consent of the 
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereina�er referred 
to as the “Board”, which term shall be deemed to include any Commi�ee of the Board or any Director(s) or Officer(s) 
authorised by the Board to exercise the powers conferred under this resolu�on), to give loan(s) in one or more 
tranches, including by way of book debt, and/or give guarantee(s), and/or provide security(ies) in connec�on with 
any loan(s) taken or to be taken, by any person or body corporate in which any of the Directors of the Company may 
be interested, or by any en�ty which is a group en�ty of the Company including any subsidiary or associate company 
of the Company, for an amount outstanding at any point of �me not exceeding ₹400 Crores (Rupees Four Hundred 
Crores only), in such manner and on such terms and condi�ons as the Board may, in its absolute discre�on, deem 
beneficial and in the best interest of the Company.

Registered Office:
A-1101, Sankalp Iconic Tower, Opp. Vikram Nagar,                                                By Order of the Board,
Iscon Temple cross Road, S.G. Highway                                                                      Ms. Palak Sharma  
Ahmedabad – 380054                                                                                                 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
                                                                                                                            

Place: Ahmedabad 
rdDate: 03  September, 2025
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PRATHAM EPC PROJECTS LIMITED

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Item No. 3

Ra�fica�on of the purchase of machinery from IPO proceeds and its subsequent sale to the Wholly Owned Subsidiary (WOS)

Pursuant to the objects outlined in the Prospectus at the �me of the Company’s Ini�al Public Offering (IPO), certain machinery 
was procured using IPO proceeds to support the Company’s opera�onal growth and expansion.

Subsequent to the IPO, the Company iden�fied a strategic opportunity to expand its footprint in the United Arab Emirates (UAE) 
and accordingly incorporated a Wholly Owned Subsidiary (WOS) to pursue business in the interna�onal market. Shortly a�er its 
incorpora�on, the WOS secured its first significant project in the UAE, which required immediate deployment of specific 
machinery. The availability of this machinery was cri�cal to meet the �melines s�pulated by the local authori�es, who were 
strict about �mely commencement of opera�ons.

In view of this requirement, the Company evaluated various alterna�ves to support its WOS:

· Procuring equivalent machinery in the UAE was found to be cost-prohibi�ve, with prices higher than in India.

· Ren�ng such equipment locally was also financially unviable due to high leasing costs, especially for a newly established 
en�ty like the WOS, which was in its ini�al phase of opera�ons.

Accordingly, the Company decided to lease the machinery to the WOS. However, as per the provisions of the Foreign Exchange 
Management Act (FEMA), 1999, entering into a long-term rental agreement with a foreign en�ty (including a WOS) requires 
prior approval from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

The Company ini�ally intended to lease the machinery to its WOS; however, while the machinery was s�ll awai�ng clearance at 
the port, the Company learnt that, under the provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act (FEMA), 1999, a long-term 
lease arrangement with a foreign en�ty — including a wholly owned subsidiary — requires prior approval from the Reserve 
Bank of India (RBI). This regulatory requirement, coupled with ongoing delays in customs clearance, placed the Company in a 
posi�on where the machinery remained idle for a prolonged period. Simultaneously, the WOS was under increasing pressure 
from local authori�es in the UAE to begin execu�on of its project within a strict �meline.

Given the urgent opera�onal needs of the WOS and the risk of losing a strategic project opportunity, the Board of Directors, 
a�er careful considera�on of all legal, commercial, and financial factors, resolved to sell the machinery to the WOS. This 
decision was taken to:

· Avoid disrup�on in the WOS’s opera�ons and secure �mely project execu�on;

· Avoid unnecessary financial burden on the WOS;

· Protect and advance the long-term interests of the Company and its shareholders.

It is further noted that since the WOS is a 100% subsidiary, the machinery con�nues to remain within the broader corporate 
group, thereby safeguarding the Company’s economic interest in the asset.

In line with the principles of transparency, accountability, and good corporate governance, and in compliance with the 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 
2015, the company has already made disclosures to the stock exchanges and the public at large. However, the Board 
recommends that the said transac�on be placed before the members for their ra�fica�on.

The Board of Directors recommends passing the resolu�on set out in Item No. 3 as an Ordinary Resolu�on.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), or their rela�ves is in any way concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in this resolu�on, except to the extent of their shareholding in the Company or the WOS.
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PRATHAM EPC PROJECTS LIMITED

Item No. 4 – Authority to borrow money in excess of paid-up share capital and free reserves under Sec�on 180(1)(c) of the 
Companies Act, 2013

Pursuant to Sec�on 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of a company is required to obtain prior 
approval of the shareholders by way of a special resolu�on to borrow money, where the amount to be borrowed (together with 
the money already borrowed, excluding temporary loans obtained from the company’s bankers in the ordinary course of 
business) exceeds the aggregate of the paid-up share capital, free reserves, and securi�es premium of the company.

th
The shareholders had earlier granted approval for borrowing up to ₹400 crores vide special resolu�on dated 09  September, 
2023. However, in light of the Company’s growing business opera�ons, expansion plans, and increasing capital requirements, 
the exis�ng borrowing limit is no longer adequate. It is, therefore, proposed to authorize the Board of Directors to borrow 
money, from �me to �me, for the purposes of business, notwithstanding that the aggregate borrowings may exceed the limits 
prescribed under Sec�on 180(1)(c), provided that such borrowings shall not exceed ₹1,000 crores (Rupees One Thousand 
Crores only) at any point in �me.

Pursuant to Sec�on 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of a company is required to obtain prior 
approval of the shareholders by way of a special resolu�on to borrow money exceeding the previous limit of Rs. 400 crores, and 
therefore the board proposes this resolu�on for members approval.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), or their rela�ves is in any way concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in this resolu�on.

Item No. 5 – Authority to sell, lease, mortgage or otherwise dispose of the whole or substan�ally the whole of the 
undertaking(s) of the Company.

Pursuant to Sec�on 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors had previously obtained the approval of the 
th

shareholders by way of a special resolu�on dated 09  September, 2023 to sell, lease, mortgage, hypothecate, or otherwise 
dispose of the whole or substan�ally the whole of the undertaking(s) of the Company, subject to a limit not exceeding ₹400 
crores.

In light of the Company’s ongoing opera�onal and strategic requirements, it may become necessary to create charges, 
mortgages, or other encumbrances on the Company’s movable and/or immovable proper�es, both present and future, or the 
whole or substan�ally the whole of its undertaking(s), to secure borrowings not exceeding ₹1,000 crores (Rupees One 
Thousand Crores only), as proposed under the special resolu�on in Item No. 4 above, in accordance with Sec�on 180(1)(c) of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

To allow the Company to manage its assets efficiently and have the flexibility to take business decisions, the Board is seeking 
approval from the shareholders through a special resolu�on under Sec�on 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors accordingly recommends the passing of the special resolu�ons under Item No. 5.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), or their rela�ves is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in 
the said resolu�ons.

Item No. 6 – Applica�on of Preferen�al Issue Proceeds

The members of the Company had approved the preferen�al issue of 4,52,489 equity shares amoun�ng to ₹10,00,00,069 
(Rupees Ten Crore and Sixty-Nine only), with the object of raising funds for to finance the working capital requirements of the 
Company and for general corporate purposes.

The Board of Directors has reviewed the ongoing business requirements and future expansion plans. In order to achieve greater 
opera�onal flexibility, the Board is of the view that it would be in the best interest of the Company to also u�lise a part of the said 
proceeds towards investment in, loan to, or business expansion of the Company’s subsidiary(ies), including its wholly-owned 
subsidiary(ies) in India or abroad, in view of the ongoing and upcoming projects being undertaken by such subsidiary 
companies.

Although the applicable regula�ons do not mandate specific shareholder approval for such u�lisa�on in case of a preferen�al 
issue by an SME listed en�ty, the Board of Directors considers it prudent to seek the consent of the members of the Company to 
include the above purpose, in addi�on to the purposes already approved earlier, as a ma�er of good corporate governance and 
to ensure complete transparency in u�lisa�on of issue proceeds.
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The Board recommends the resolu�on set out in the accompanying No�ce for approval of the members as an Ordinary 
Resolu�on.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company, or their rela�ves are in any way, financially or 
otherwise, concerned or interested in the resolu�on, except to the extent of their shareholding in the Company, if any.

Item No. 7 – Approval of loans, guarantees or securi�es under sec�ons 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

The members of the Company had earlier approved limits under Sec�ons 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 for making 
thloans, providing guarantees and offering securi�es up to ₹200 Crores dated 09  September, 2023.

In view of the Company’s business expansion plans, including the u�lisa�on of preferen�al issue proceeds for the purpose of 
investment in, loan to, or business expansion of its wholly owned subsidiary(ies) in India or abroad, the exis�ng limit of ₹200 
Crores is proposed to be enhanced to ₹400 Crores.

This increase will enable the Company to provide financial support to its subsidiary(ies), associate companies or group 
en��es, whenever required, and to meet ongoing and upcoming project requirements, including the Company’s wholly 
owned subsidiary in the UAE. The enhancement of this limit will provide greater opera�onal and financial flexibility to the 
Board of Directors in deploying funds for the growth of the Company and its group.

Accordingly, approval of the members is sought, by way of Special Resolu�on, to authorise the Board of Directors to give 
loans, provide guarantees, and/or offer securi�es in connec�on with loans taken by subsidiary(ies), associate companies or 
other en��es in which Directors may be interested, up to an aggregate outstanding amount not exceeding ₹400 Crores at any 
point in �me.

The Board recommends the Special Resolu�on set out in the accompanying No�ce for approval of the members.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, or their rela�ves are in any way, financially or otherwise, 
concerned or interested in this resolu�on, except to the extent of their shareholding in the Company, if any.

Registered Office:
A-1101, Sankalp Iconic Tower, Opp. Vikram Nagar,                                              By Order of the Board,
Iscon Temple cross Road, S.G. Highway                                                                    Ms. Palak Sharma  
Ahmedabad – 380054                                                                                                   Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
                                                                                                                            

Place: Ahmedabad 
rd

Date: 03  September, 2025
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NOTES 

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Sec�on 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the Special Businesses set 
out in the No�ce is annexed hereto.

2. A shareholder/member en�tled to a�end and vote at the Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) is also en�tled to appoint 
a proxy to a�end and vote instead of himself/herself. A proxy need not be a shareholder/member of the Company. 
The instrument appoin�ng the proxy, in order to be effec�ve, must be deposited at the Registered Office of the 
Company duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the AGM.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 (fi�y) in number and holding in aggregate not more 
than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. In case a member holds more than 10% of the total share capital of 
the Company, a single person can be appointed as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or 
shareholder. The instrument appoin�ng the proxy shall be signed by the appointer or his/her a�orney duly authorised 
in wri�ng, or if the appointer is a body corporate, it shall be under its seal or signed by an officer or a�orney duly 
authorised. A proxy form is annexed at the end of this Annual Report.

Shareholders/Members/Proxies/Authorised Representa�ves are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report 
and the a�endance slips sent herewith to a�end the AGM, as no extra copies will be provided at the venue. Members 
are further requested to quote their Folio Numbers / DP ID - Client ID in all correspondence with the Company.

3. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 24/09/2025 to 30/09/2025 
(both days inclusive) for the purpose of AGM and determining en�tlement of dividend, if declared.

4. Ins�tu�onal/Corporate members intending to appoint their authorised representa�ve(s) to a�end the mee�ng are 
requested to send to the Company and to the Scru�nizer a cer�fied copy of the Board Resolu�on authorising such 
representa�ve(s) under Sec�on 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, together with their specimen signature(s).

5. In  case  of  Joint  holders  a�ending  the  mee�ng,  only  such  joint  holders  who  are  first holders/ higher in order of 
names will be en�tled to vote.

6. As per SEBI guidelines, submission of PAN, KYC and nomina�on details is mandatory for all shareholders. Members 
holding shares in demat form are requested to update these details with their Depository Par�cipants. Members 
holding shares in physical form are requested to submit PAN, KYC and nomina�on details to the Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent (RTA),  L ink In�me India Private Limited. Forms for the same are avai lable at: 

h�ps://web.linkin�me.co.in/KYC-downloads.html.

7. In support of the Government of India’s “Green Ini�a�ve”, shareholders holding shares in physical mode are requested 
to register their email addresses with the Company’s RTA at ahmedabad@linkin�me.co.in quo�ng their folio number 
and name of the Company. Members holding shares in demat mode are requested to update their email IDs with their 
respec�ve Depository Par�cipants. This will enable the Company to send Annual Report, No�ces and other documents 
electronically.

8. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for FY 2024-25, including the No�ce of AGM indica�ng the process of e-vo�ng, is 
being sent to members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/DPs. The Annual Report is also available on 

the Company’s website  and the e-vo�ng website of CDSL .www.prathamepc.com www.evo�ngindia.com

9.    Members seeking any informa�on regarding the accounts or opera�ons of the Company are requested to write to the 
Company Secretary at cs@prathamepc.com at least 10 days before the AGM, so that the informa�on can be compiled 
and made available at the mee�ng.
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10. All documents referred to in the No�ce and Explanatory Statement will be available for inspec�on at the Registered 
Office of the Company on all working days (except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays) between 10:00 a.m. and 
1:00 p.m. up to the date of AGM and will also be made available at the AGM venue.

11. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Sec�on 170, and the 
Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under Sec�on 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, shall be available for inspec�on at the Registered Office of the Company and at the AGM.

12. Members can avail the facility of nomina�on in respect of shares held in physical form by submi�ng Form SH-13 to the 
RTA. For ‘Opt-Out’, ‘Cancella�on’ or ‘Change’ in nomina�on, they may submit Form ISR-3 or SH-14 as applicable. The 
formats are available on the Company’s website and RTA’s website.

13. The vo�ng rights of members shall be in propor�on to their shareholding as on the cut-off date Tuesday, September 23, 
2025. A person who is not a member as on the cut-off date should treat this no�ce for informa�on purposes only. 
Members who acquire shares a�er dispatch of the AGM No�ce but before the cut-off date may vote by following the 
instruc�ons for e-vo�ng.

14. The Company has appointed Ms. Viral A. Garachh, Prac�cing Company Secretary, Ahmedabad (Membership No. 
F12558, COP No.15293) as Scru�nizer to scru�nize the vo�ng process in a fair and transparent manner. At the AGM, 
vo�ng by ballot paper will also be made available for members who have not cast their votes through remote e-vo�ng.

15. The Scru�nizer shall, immediately a�er conclusion of vo�ng at AGM, first count the votes cast at the mee�ng, then 
unblock the votes cast through remote e-vo�ng, and submit a consolidated Scru�nizer’s Report to the Chairman or a 
person authorised by him within two working days. The Chairman or authorised person shall declare the result 
forthwith.

16. The results declared along with the Scru�nizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website 

www.prathamepc.com www.evo�ngindia.com and on CDSL’s website  and shall also be communicated to the Stock 
Exchange(s) within the prescribed �me.

 17.  Instruc�ons For Remote E-Vo�ng:

 Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and          
Administra�on) Rules, 2014 and Regula�on 44 of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, the 
Company is pleased to provide the facility to exercise members’ right to vote at the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) by 
electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-vo�ng services provided by the Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL). The facility for vo�ng through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM, and the Shareholders/ Members 
a�ending the mee�ng who have not cast their vote by remote e-vo�ng shall be able to exercise their right at the mee�ng through ballot. 
E-vo�ng facility will not be made available at the AGM venue. The Shareholders / Members who have cast their vote by remote e-vo�ng 
prior to the AGM may also a�end the AGM but shall not be en�tled to cast their vote again. The instruc�ons for Shareholders/ members 
for vo�ng electronically are as under:

(i) The vo�ng period begins on September 27, 2025 at 9:00 AM (IST) and ends on September 29, 2025 at 5:00 PM (IST). During this 
period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record 
date) of Tuesday, September 23, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The e-vo�ng module shall be disabled by CDSL for vo�ng 
therea�er.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the mee�ng date would not be en�tled to vote at the mee�ng venue.
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(iii) Currently, there are mul�ple e-vo�ng service providers (ESPs) providing e-vo�ng facility to listed en��es in India. This 
necessitates registra�on on various ESPs and maintenance of mul�ple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders. 

In order to increase the efficiency of the vo�ng process, pursuant to a public consulta�on, it has been decided to enable 
e-vo�ng to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login creden�al, through their demat accounts/ websites of 
Depositories/ Depository Par�cipants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to 
register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilita�ng seamless authen�ca�on but also enhancing ease and 
convenience of par�cipa�ng in e-vo�ng process. 

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Vo�ng system in case of individual    shareholders holding shares in 
demat mode. 

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Vo�ng facility provided by 
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Par�cipants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 
number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Vo�ng facility.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Vo�ng for Individual shareholders holding securi�es in Demat mode 
CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of 
shareholders

Login Method

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securi�es 
in Demat mode 
with CDSL 
Depository.

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 
exis�ng user id and password. Op�on will be made available to reach e-Vo�ng 
page without any further authen�ca�on. The users to login to Easi / Easiest are 
requested to visit cdsl website  and click on login icon & www.cdslindia.com
New System Myeasi Tab.

2) A�er successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Vo�ng 
op�on for eligible companies where the evo�ng is in progress as per the 
informa�on provided by company. On clicking the evo�ng op�on, the user will 
be able to see e-Vo�ng page of the e-Vo�ng service provider for cas�ng your 
vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period or joining virtual mee�ng & vo�ng 
during the mee�ng. Addi�onally, there is also links provided to access the 
system of all e-Vo�ng Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Vo�ng 
service providers’ website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, op�on to register is available at 
cdsl website  and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab www.cdslindia.com
and then click on registra�on op�on.

4) Alterna�vely, the user can directly access e-Vo�ng page by providing Demat 
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Vo�ng link available on  

 home page. The system will authen�cate the user by www.cdslindia.com
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. 
A�er successful authen�ca�on, user will be able to see the e-Vo�ng op�on 
where the evo�ng is in progress and also able to directly access the system of 
all e-Vo�ng Service Providers.
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Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securi�es 
in demat mode 
with NSDL 
Depository

1)  If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services 
website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

 either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com
the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon 
under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ sec�on. A new screen will open. 
You will have to enter your User ID and Password. A�er successful 
authen�ca�on, you will be able to see e-Vo�ng services. Click on “Access to 
e-Vo�ng” under e-Vo�ng services and you will be able to see e-Vo�ng page. 
Click on company name or e-Vo�ng service provider name and you will be 
re-directed to e-Vo�ng service provider website for cas�ng your vote during 
the remote e-Vo�ng period.

2)  If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, op�on to register is available 
at .  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com
at h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3) Visit the e-Vo�ng website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL:  either on a Personal Computer or on a h�ps://www.evo�ng.nsdl.com/
mobile. Once the home page of e-Vo�ng system is launched, click on the icon 
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ sec�on. A new screen 
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat 
account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verifica�on Code as 
shown on the screen. A�er successful authen�ca�on, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Vo�ng page. Click on company 
name or e-Vo�ng service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Vo�ng 
service provider website for cas�ng your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period.

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding securi�es 
in demat mode) 
login through their 
Depository 
Par�cipants (DP)

You can also login using the login creden�als of your demat account through 
your Depository Par�cipant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Vo�ng facility.  
A�er Successful login, you will be able to see e-Vo�ng op�on. Once you click 
on e-Vo�ng op�on, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site a�er 
successful authen�ca�on, wherein you can see e-Vo�ng feature. Click on 
company name or e-Vo�ng service provider name and you will be redirected 
to e-Vo�ng service provider website for cas�ng your vote during the remote 
e-Vo�ng period.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password op�on available at abovemen�oned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding 
securi�es in Demat mode with 
CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at  helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com

or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

Individual Shareholders holding 
securi�es in Demat mode with 
NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at evo�ng@nsdl.co.in or call at 
toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30  
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Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Vo�ng system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual 
shareholders in demat mode.

Login method for Remote e-Vo�ng for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than individual holding in Demat 
form.

1)The shareholders should log on to the e-vo�ng website .www.evo�ngindia.com

2)Click on “Shareholders” module.

3)Now enter your User ID 

         a.For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
         b.For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 
         c.Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

4)Next enter the Image Verifica�on as displayed and Click on Login.

5)If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to  and voted on an earlier e-vo�ng of www.evo�ngindia.com
any company, then your exis�ng password is to be used. 

6)If you are a first-�me user follow the steps given below:

PAN

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding 
shares in Demat.

Enter your 10digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 
Par�cipant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or 
contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank 
Details OR 
Date of Birth 
(DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy 
format) as recorded in your demat account or in the company records in 
order to login.

If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please 
enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

7)   A�er entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

8) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selec�on screen. However, 
   shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Crea�on’ menu wherein they are required to 
     mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the 
     demat holders for vo�ng for resolu�ons of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company 
    opts for e-vo�ng through CDSL pla�orm. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person 
      and take utmost care to keep your password confiden�al.

9)  For Shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-vo�ng on the resolu�ons contained 
     in this No�ce.

10)  Click on the EVSN for the relevant Ice Make Refrigera�on Limited on which you choose to vote.
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11) On the vo�ng page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the op�on “YES/NO” for vo�ng. 
Select the op�on YES or NO as desired. The op�on YES implies that you assent to the Resolu�on and op�on NO implies 
that you dissent to the Resolu�on.

12) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the en�re Resolu�on details.

13) A�er selec�ng the resolu�on, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirma�on box will be displayed. If you 
wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

14) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolu�on, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

15) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “CLICK HERE TO PRINT” op�on on the Vo�ng page.

16) If a demat account holder has forgo�en the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verifica�on code and 
click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

17) There is also an op�onal provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available to scru�nizer for 
verifica�on.

Addi�onal Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote Vo�ng only.

· Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to 
www.evo�ngindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

· A scanned copy of the Registra�on Form bearing the stamp and sign of the en�ty should be emailed to 
helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com.

· A�er receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The 
Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

· The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automa�cally & can be delink in case of any wrong mapping.
· It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolu�on and Power of A�orney (POA) which they have issued in 

favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scru�nizer to verify the same.
· Alterna�vely Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board Resolu�on/ Authority 

le�er etc. together with a�ested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to 
the Scru�nizer and to the Company at the email address viz; cs@prathamepc.com, if they have voted from individual 
tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-vo�ng system for the scru�nizer to verify the same

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 
COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN 
THIS NOTICE:

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of 
the share cer�ficate (front and back), PAN (self a�ested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self a�ested scanned 
copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respec�ve Depository Par�cipant 
(DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respec�ve Depository 
Par�cipant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Vo�ng & joining virtual mee�ngs through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding e-Vo�ng from the CDSL e-Vo�ng System, you can write an email to 
helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

All grievances connected with the facility for vo�ng by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) 
Central Depository Services (India)Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, MafatlalMill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower 
Parel (East),Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com or call toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.
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THE DETAILS OF THE DIRECTOR(S) SEEKING APPOINTMENT/ RE-APPOINTMENT AND/ OR FIXATION OF REMUNERATION OF 
MANAGING DIRECTOR IN FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING PURSUANT TO SECRETARIAL STANDARD 2 ISSUED BY 
THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA:

Name of Directors Mehul Nanjibhai Thummar
(DIN: 10211744)

Designa�on of Director Non-Execu�ve 
Director

Date of Birth 19/12/1989

Date of Appointment 23-06-2023

Qualifica�ons He holds the Degree of Masters of Computer Applica�on 
from Ganpat University, Gujarat.

Experience He has over nine years of experience across Supply Chain 
& Manufacturing, Finance and the Healthcare domain. 
His cross-industry exper�se in opera�ons, financial 
planning, and process improvement enables him to 
contribute effec�vely to strategic decision-making and 
the long-term growth of the Company.

Terms and condi�ons of appointment 
or re-appointment 

Re-appointment in terms of Sec�on 152(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013

Shareholding in the Company -

Rela�onship with other Directors, Manager 
and other Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company,

-

Number of Mee�ngs of the Board a�ended 
during the year

11 of 21 mee�ngs a�ended 
(FY 2024-25)

List of Public Limited Companies in which 
Directorships held

-

List of Public Limited Companies in which 
Directorships held

-

Chairman/Member of the Commi�ees of 
Directors of other Companies

-

Jus�fica�on for choosing the appointee for 
appointment as Independent Directors

NA

Registered Office:
A-1101, Sankalp Iconic Tower, Opp. Vikram Nagar,
Iscon Temple cross Road, S.G. Highway 
Ahmedabad – 380054

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 03rd September, 2025

By Order of the Board,

Ms. Palak Sharma 
Company Secretary &

Compliance Officer
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PRATHAM EPC PROJECTS LIMITED

PRATHAM EPC PROJECTS LIMITED
(Formerly Pratham EPC Projects Limited)

[CIN: L45200GJ2014PLC081119]
A-1101, Sankalp Iconic Tower, Opp. Vikram Nagar, Iscon Temple cross Road, S.G. Highway, Ahmedabad – 380058

FORM MGT-11
PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to Sec�on 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the 
Companies (Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014)]

Name of the member (s):

Registered Address:

Email Id:

Folio No./ DPID-Client ID:

I/We, being the member (s) of …...........................……. Shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint:

1. Name: ……………………………...................... Address:..........................................................................................

    Email Id: ……………….............................…..Signature: ……….............…………………………….……or failing him

2. Name: ……………………………...................... Address:..........................................................................................

    Email Id: ………………................................. Signature: ………..................……………..........................................…… 

as my/ our proxy to a�end and vote (on a poll) for me as me/us and on my/ our behalf at the 11th Annual 
General Mee�ng of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, the 30th September, 2025 at Registered Office of the 
Company at A-1101, Sankalp Iconic, Opp. Vikram Nagar, Iscon Temple Cross Road, S.G. Highway, Ahmedabad – 
380054 at 3:00 P.M.(IST) and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolu�ons as are indicated below:

Resolu�on
Resolu�on 

No.

Ordinary Business

1.
Ordinary Resolu�on for adop�on of the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company 
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.
Ordinary Resolu�on for re-appointment of Mr. Mehul Nanjibhai Thummar, liable to re�re by rota�on and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Ordinary Business

3.
Ra�fica�on of u�liza�on of IPO proceeds for purchase of machinery and its subsequent sale to the Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary (WOS).

4.
Authority to borrow money in excess of paid-up share capital and free reserves under Sec�on 180(1)(c) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

5.
Authority to sell, lease, mortgage or otherwise dispose of the whole or substan�ally the whole of the 
undertaking(s) of the Company.

6. Applica�on of Preferen�al Issue Proceeds.

7. Approval of loans, guarantees or securi�es under sec�ons 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Signed this ................................. day of .............................................. 2025       

Signature of Shareholder.....................................................................

Affix 
Revenue 

Stamp Here

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effec�ve should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the 
Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Mee�ng.
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PRATHAM EPC PROJECTS LIMITED

PRATHAM EPC PROJECTS LIMITED
(Formerly Pratham EPC Projects Limited)

[CIN: L45200GJ2014PLC081119]
A-1101, Sankalp Iconic Tower, Opp. Vikram Nagar, Iscon Temple cross Road, S.G. Highway, Ahmedabad – 380058

ATTENDANCE SLIP
[PLEASE BRING THIS ATTENDANCE SLIP TO THE MEETING AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE DULY FILLED IN]

Folio No.:

Name of the member (s):                                                                                                                

Registered Address:

I hereby record my presence at the 11th Annual General Mee�ng of the Company held on Tuesday, the 30th 
September, 2025 at Registered Office of the Company at A-1101, Sankalp Iconic, Opp. Vikram Nagar, Iscon 
Temple Cross Road, S.G. Highway, Ahmedabad – 380054 at 3:00 P.M. (IST) 

Full name of Shareholder/Proxy (in Block Letters)

Full name of Shareholder/Proxy (in Block Letters)  Signature of Shareholder/Proxy

 Signature of Shareholder/Proxy
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PRATHAM EPC PROJECTS LIMITED
(Formerly Pratham EPC Projects Private Limited)

[CIN: L45200GJ2014PLC081119]

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members/ Shareholders,
TH

Your Directors are pleasured to present the 11  ANNUAL REPORT together with the Audited 
st 

Financial Statements for the Financial Year 24-25 ended 31 March, 2025.

1. Financial Results:

Standalone Consolidated

(₹ In Lakhs)

Par�culars FY 25 FY 24 FY 25 FY 24

Opera�ng Profit (Before 
Interest & Deprecia�on) 2105.3 1657.40 2129.20 1657.45

Less: Finance Cost 116.11 189.82 116.21 189.82

 Profit before Deprecia�on 1989.19 1467.58 2012.99 1467.63

Less: Deprecia�on and 
amor�za�on expenses

151.69 116.89 157.08 123.07

Profit before Tax 1837.5 1350.69 1855.91 1344.56

Less: Current Tax 480.00 352.00 480.00 351.70

Less/(Add): Deferred Tax 
Liability/(Asset)

4.17 2.36 5.25 4.15

Less/ (Add): Short provision 
of earlier years

00 (8.40) 00 (8.40)

Profit a�er Tax 1353.33 1004.72 1370.66 997.10

2. Dividend:

With a view to conserve the resources, the Board of Directors has not recommended any dividend on the Equity Shares 
for the year under review.

3. Opera�ons: 

Standalone
For the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has recorded an excep�onal leap in revenue, reaching an 
impressive ₹11,777.78 lakhs, reflec�ng a staggering 71.10% growth over the previous financial year. This significant upswing 
is a clear indicator of the Company’s strong market posi�oning, strategic foresight, and its accelera�ng growth trajectory 
across key opera�onal ver�cals. 

The Company’s Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Deprecia�on and Amor�za�on (EBITDA) witnessed a robust expansion, rising 
from ₹1,657.40 lakhs in FY 2023-24 to ₹2,105.30 lakhs in FY 2024-25, registering a noteworthy increase of 27.02%. This 
sustained growth in EBITDA showcases the resilience of our business model, underpinned by prudent cost op�miza�on, 
enhanced opera�onal efficiencies, and focused execu�on. 
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Furthermore, Earnings Per Share (EPS) demonstrated posi�ve momentum, improving from ₹7.61 to ₹7.62, underscoring our 
consistent efforts to enhance shareholder value and reaffirming the Company’s commitment to delivering stable and 
long-term returns. 

The overall financial performance in FY 2024-25 not only underscores the Company’s upward trajectory, but also sets a 
strong founda�on for con�nued success in the years to come.

Consolidated

For the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Company delivered a spectacular performance, catapul�ng its consolidated 
revenue to an impressive ₹11,889.70 lakh, marking an excep�onal surge of approximately 71% over the previous fiscal year.

Our consolidated Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Deprecia�on, and Amor�za�on (EBITDA) also witnessed a significant leap, 
ascending from ₹1,657.45 lakh in FY 2023-24 to ₹2,129.20 lakh in FY 2024-25 – a remarkable growth of 28.46%.

Moreover, our commitment to shareholder value crea�on was further underscored by the increase in consolidated Earnings 
Per Share (EPS), which rose from ₹7.56 to ₹7.72 – reinforcing the confidence our stakeholders have in the Company’s 
long-term strategy and sustainable growth path.

Reserves: 

Your Company does not propose to transfer any amount to general reserve.

4.  Share Capital Of The Company:

     4.1 Authorised Capital

The authorised share capital of the Company remains unchanged at ₹20,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty Crores only) 
during the financial year under review. There has been no altera�on or increase in the authorised capital during the
year.

4.2  Increase in Paid-Up Capital of the Company

During the year, the Company ini�ated the process of raising capital through a preferen�al allotment of 4,52,489 
equity shares at a price of ₹221 per share (including a premium). The Company obtained in-principle approval from 
the Na�onal Stock Exchange (NSE) on 28th March 2025 for the said preferen�al issue.

The allotment and all post-issue formali�es are completed in the subsequent financial year. The Company has made 
all necessary disclosures and complied with applicable regulatory requirements under SEBI (Issue of Capital and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2018 and other relevant provisions.

5.  U�lisa�on of IPO Proceeds:

The Company raised funds of 3600 Lakhs through Ini�al Public Offering (“IPO”). The gross proceeds of IPO have been u�lized 
in the manner as proposed in the Prospectus, the details of which are as under:

(Rs. in Crores)

Sr. No. Original Object Original Alloca�on
Funds u�lized upto 

st
31  March, 2025

1. Working Capital 15.15 15.15

2.
Purchase of Machinery/ 
Equipment

6.618.84

3. Issue Expense 3.19 3.19

4. General Corporate Purpose 8.82 8.82

Total 36.00 33.77
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6.  Directors & Key Managerial Personnel:

The Company has following KMP and board of directors as at 31/03/2025:

Sr. No. Name Designa�on
Date of 

Appointment

1. Nayankumar Manubhai Pansuriya Whole-�me director 27/10/2014

2. Pra�kkumar Maganlal Vekariya Managing Director 27/10/2014

3. AbhayaPada Sarangi Independent Director 28/04/2023

4. Mehul Nanjibhai Thummar Non-Execu�ve Director 23/06/2023

5. Palak Sharma Company Secretary 12/12/2024

6. Garima Rajput Independent Director 06/06/2023

7. Yogesh Vasantbhai Joglekar CFO 06/06/2023

During the year, Miss Bhavasthi Rahul Mehta resigned from her office of Company Secretary with effect from November 19, 
2024. Subsequently, Miss Palak Sharma was appointed as the Compliance Officer and Company Secretary.

  No director resigned during the year under review.

1. Re�rement by Rota�on

In accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Mehul Nanjibhai Thummar shall re�re 
by rota�on at the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng of the Company and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. 
The Board recommends his re-appointment. 

2. Evalua�on of the Board’s Performance: 

During the financial year under report, exercise of evalua�on was carried out through a structured evalua�on process 
covering various aspects of the Board’s func�oning such as composi�on of the Board & Commi�ee(s), experience & 
competencies, performance of specific du�es & obliga�ons, governance etc. Separate exercise was carried out to evaluate 
the performance of each individual Director including the Board’s Chairman who were evaluated on parameters such as 
a�endance, contribu�on at the mee�ngs and otherwise, independent judgments, safeguarding of minority shareholders’ 
interest etc. The evalua�on of the Independent Directors was carried out by the en�re Board excluding Independent 
Directors and that of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The 
Directors were sa�sfied with the evalua�on results, which reflected the overall engagement of the Board and its Commi�ees 
with the Company. This may be considered as a statement under provisions of Sec�on 134(3)(p) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Rule 8(4) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The Board of your Company is composed with proper number of 
Execu�ve and Non – Execu�ve Directors.

3. Statement of Declara�on given by Independent Directors 

The Company has received necessary declara�on of independence from all Independent Directors of the Company, under
Sec�on 149(7) of the Act, that he/she meets the criteria of Independent Directors envisaged in Sec�on 149(6) of the Act and 
rules made thereunder and SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 and is not disqualified from con�nuing as Independent Directors. 
The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have registered themselves with the Independent Director’s 
Database maintained by the Indian Ins�tute of Corporate Affairs. Further Company has also received statements from all the 
Independent Directors that they have complied with Code of Conduct for Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule IV 
of the act and also statement on compliance of code of conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel formulated 
by Company.
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4. Managerial Remunera�on:

The overall Managerial Remunera�on provided during the year is in compliance with Sec�on 197 read with Schedule V of 
the companies Act, 2013.

5. Number of Mee�ngs of Board of Directors

The Board of Directors duly met 20 �mes during the financial year under review on:

Sr. No. Date 
No. of directors en�tled to 

a�end the mee�ng
No. of Directors a�ended 

the mee�ng

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

01/05/2024

18/05/2024

30/05/2024

21/06/2024

31/07/2024

03/08/2024

13/08/2024

30/08/2024

20/11/2024

12/12/2024

19/12/2024

25/12/2024

06/01/2025

12/02/2025

18/02/2025

25/02/2025

04/03/2025

07/03/2025

11/03/2025

26/03/2025

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

2

5

2

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

6. Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

Pursuant to the requirement of Sec�on 134(3)(c) read with sec�on 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is hereby confirmed:

(i) that in the prepara�on of the annual accounts, the applicable accoun�ng standards had been followed along with 
proper explana�on rela�ng to material departures;

(ii) that the Directors had selected such accoun�ng policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
es�mates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at 

st
31  March, 2025 being end of the financial year 2024-2025 and of the profit of the Company for the year;

(iii) that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and other irregulari�es;

38



(iv) that the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

(v) the Directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were opera�ng effec�vely. In the view of the management, the internal financial 
controls are laid down in such a manner that it takes care of the expenses, fixed assets, revenues. Such that overall 
finance of the company is being taken care of. In the view of the directors of the company, such internal financial 
controls are adequate.

(vi) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems were adequate and opera�ng effec�vely.

With respect to the loans advanced by the Directors to the Company, the Company has received necessary declara�ons from 
Directors that the said loan is not given out of funds acquired by them by borrowing or accep�ng loans or deposits from 
others.

7. Internal Financial Control and Its Adequacy:

The Board has adopted policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to the Company’s policies, safeguarding of assets, preven�on and detec�on of frauds and errors, accuracy and 
completeness of the accoun�ng records and the �mely prepara�on of reliable financial disclosures.

8. Remunera�on Policy:

The Company follows a policy on remunera�on of Directors and Senior Management Employees. The policy has been 
approved by the Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee and the Board. The policy on Remunera�on of Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and Senior Employees can be accessed on website of the Company.

Brief profile of the Directors being appointed /re-appointed as required under Regula�ons 36(3) of Lis�ng Regula�ons, 2015 
and Secretarial Standard on General Mee�ngs are provided in the No�ce for the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

9. Par�culars Of Employees:

There is no Employee drawing remunera�on requiring disclosure under Rule 5(2) of Companies Appointment & 
Remunera�on of Managerial personnel) Rules, 2014.

The ra�o of the remunera�on of each director to the median of employees' remunera�on as per Sec�on 197(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Report as Annexure-G

10. Management Discussion And Analysis Report

In terms of Regula�on 34, and Schedule V of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 a 
review of the performance of the Company, for the year under review, Management Discussion and Analysis Report, is 
presented in a separate sec�on forming part of this Annual Report as Annexure D

11. Personnel and H. R. D.:

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

The industrial rela�ons con�nued to remain cordial and peaceful and your Company con�nued to give ever increasing 
importance to training at all levels and other aspects of H. R. D.

The number of Employees of the Company is 408. The rela�onship between average increase in remunera�on and 
Company’s performance is as per the appropriate performance benchmarks and reflects short and long term performance 
objec�ves appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals. 
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12. Related Party Transac�on: 

During the financial year 2024–25, the provisions of Regula�on 23 of the SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015, rela�ng to material 
related party transac�ons, were not applicable to the Company pursuant to the exemp�on provision of Regula�on 15 of the 
SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015.

For FY 2024–25, related party transac�on details under Sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are disclosed in Note 36 of 
the Financial Statements, and Form AOC-2 is a�ached as Annexure-B to the Directors’ Report.

13. Details of Loans, Guarantees, Investment & Securi�es Provided:

During the year under review, the Company has extended a loan to Pratham Interna�onal Contrac�ng LLC-OPC 
(wholly-owned subsidiary), and to Pipeflow Integrity India Private Limited (Subsidiary) in compliance with the provisions of 
Sec�on 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of this loan are disclosed in Note No. 36 to the Financial Statements.

Further, the Company has done its equity investment in Pratham Interna�onal Contrac�ng LLC-OPC, by the way of 
subscrip�on to MOA making it wholly owned subsidiary. The total amount invested stands at ₹11,89,360. The details of this 
investment are available in Note No. 14 of the Financial Statements a�ached to this Report.

It is per�nent to note that the Company has not provided any guarantee or security under Sec�on 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 during the repor�ng financial year.

14. Conserva�on Of Energy, Technology Absorp�on And Foreign Exchange Earnings And Outgo: 

The informa�on required under Sec�on 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 8(3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014, are reported in Annexure A

15. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

As per Sec�on 135(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 if the amount to be spent by a company under sec�on 135(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 does not exceed Rs. 50.00 lakh, then the requirement under 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
cons�tu�on of the Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee is not be applicable and the func�ons of such CSR Commi�ee 
as provided under sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall, be discharged by the Board of Directors the Company. 
Accordingly, the func�ons as entrusted under sec�on 135(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 have been discharged by the Board 
of directors of the company.

The Company was required to spend Rs. 19.58 Lakh towards CSR during the year 2024-2025.  and that the company has 
spent the amounts of Rs 19.65 Lakh towards compliance with the CSR.

As per Rule 8(1) of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 the Annual Report on Corporate Social 
Ac�vi�es has been a�ached herewith as Annexure –E.

16. Secretarial Auditor and Their Report: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 204 of the Act read with The Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, your Company has appointed M/s. Viral A. Garachh, Prac�cing Company Secretaries, 
Ahmedabad to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2024-2025. The Secretarial Audit Report 
is annexed herewith as Annexure – F to this Report.

17. Annual Return:

The Annual Return as required under Sec�on 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management 
and Administra�on) Rules, 2014 is available on the website of the Company and can be accessed at www.prathamepc.com
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18. Audit Commi�ee:

The Board of Directors has cons�tuted Audit Commi�ee consis�ng of the following:  

1. Ms. Garima Rajput                          Chairman
2. Mr.  Abhaya P. Sarangi                             Member
3. Mr. Pra�kkumar M. Vekariya                   Member

The Audit Commi�ee duly met 6 �mes during the financial year under review on 20/05/2024, 25/07/2024, 12/09/2024, 
11/12/2024, 15/02/2025 and 26/03/2025.

19. Vigil Mechanism:

The company has a whistle blower policy and has established the necessary Vigil Mechanism in confirma�on with sec�on 
177(9) of the companies Act, 2013 for effec�ve and smooth func�oning of Company. All the Board Members and Senior 
Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the policy of Vigil Mechanism.

20. Nomina�on And Remunera�on Commi�ee:  

The Company has also set up a Remunera�on Commi�ee of Directors, consis�ng of:

      1. Ms. Garima Rajput                         Chairman
      2. Mr. Abhaya P. Sarangi                 Member
      3. Mr.  Mehul N. Thummar              Member

The Commi�ee iden�fies and ascertains the integrity, qualifica�on, exper�se and experience of the person for appointment 
as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board his / her appointment. The Commi�ee has 
discre�on to decide whether qualifica�on, exper�se and experience possessed by a person are sufficient / sa�sfactory for 
the concerned posi�on. 

The Commi�ee fixes remunera�on of the Directors on the basis of their performance and also prac�ce in the industry. The 
terms of reference of the Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee include review and recommenda�on to the Board of 
Directors of the remunera�on paid to the Directors. The NRC Commi�ee duly met 1 �me during the financial year under 
review on 21/03/2025.

21. Stakeholders’ Rela�onship Commi�ee:

The Board has cons�tuted a Stakeholders’ Rela�onship Commi�ee for the purpose of effec�ve Redressal of the complaints 
and concerns of the shareholders and other stakeholders of the Company.       

The Commi�ee comprises the following Directors as members as on the date of the Report:

1. Mr. Abhaya P. Sarangi  Chairman    
2. Ms. Garima Rajput  Member  
3. Mr. Nayankumar M. Pansuriya    Member  

The Stakeholders’ Rela�onship Commi�ee duly met 1 �me during the financial year under review on 24/03/2025.

The Company has not received any complaints during the year. There was no valid request for transfer of shares pending as 
on date.

Ms. Bhavasthi Mehta, Company Secretary and Ms Palak Sharma were the Compliance Officer for the above purpose.
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22. Auditors:

M/s V C A N & Co.  (FRN: 125172W), Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad were appointed as a Statutory Auditor of the 
th th

Company at the 9  Annual General Mee�ng un�l conclusion of 14  Annual General Mee�ng of the members of the Company 
The Auditors’ Report for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 forms part of this Annual Report and the same does not 
contain any qualifica�on, reserva�on or adverse remark. There have been no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors 
under Sec�on 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013

The remarks of Auditor are self-explanatory and have been explained in Notes on Accounts.

23. Deposits: 

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from the public within the meaning of Sec�on 73 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

24. Subsidiaries/ Associates/ Jvs:

During the year under review, the Company has incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary named Pratham Interna�onal 
Contrac�ng LLC-OPC on 27th June 2024, in Abu Dhabi, UAE. All necessary statutory approvals, disclosures, and compliances 
have been duly completed. The newly incorporated subsidiary shares the same line of business as that of the Company and 
has been established with the objec�ve of expanding the Company’s opera�ons across interna�onal markets and enhancing 
its global footprint.

Further, the Company has disinvested its en�re shareholding in its exis�ng subsidiary, Pipeflow Integrity India Private Limited, 
rdas on 03  March 2025. The disinvestment was undertaken a�er obtaining a valua�on report, required approvals and all 

applicable disclosures and regulatory compliances have been duly adhered to in connec�on with the said transac�on.

The informa�on, pursuant to first proviso to Sec�on 129(3) and rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, rela�ng to the 
financial statement of subsidiaries/ associate companies/ joint ventures forms part of this report and is given by way of form 
AOC-1 in Annexure-C.

The Company has prepared Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its associate and is included in the 
Annual Report. 

Apart from this, the Company has no other Subsidiaries/ Associates/ Jvs.

25. Risks Management Policy: 

The Company has a risk management policy, which from �me to �me, is reviewed by the Audit Commi�ee of Directors as 
well as by the Board of Directors. The Policy is reviewed quarterly by assessing the threats and opportuni�es that will impact 
the objec�ves set for the Company as a whole. The Policy is designed to provide the categoriza�on of risk into threat and its 
cause, impact, treatment and control measures. As part of the Risk Management policy, the relevant parameters for  
protec�on of environment, safety of opera�ons and health of people at work and monitored regularly with reference to 
statutory regula�ons and guidelines defined by the Company.

26. Corporate Governance Report:

As per regula�on 15(2) of the Lis�ng Regula�on, the compliance with the Corporate Governance Provisions shall not apply in 
respect of the following class of the Companies: 

•  Listed en�ty having paid up equity share capital not exceeding Rs.10 Crore and Net Worth not exceeding Rs. 25 Crore, 
as on the last day of the previous financial year;

• L isted en�ty which has listed its specified securi�es on the SME Exchange. 
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Since, during the period under the review (i.e. FY 2024-25), our company falls in the ambit of aforesaid exemp�on (b); hence 
compliance with the provisions of Corporate Governance shall not apply to the Company and it does not form the part of the 
Annual Report for the financial year 2024-2025.

27. Code Of Conduct:

The Board of Directors has laid down a Code of Conduct applicable to the Board of Directors and Senior Management. All the 
Board Members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct.

28. Significant And Material Orders Passed By The Regulators Or Courts Or Tribunals:

There has been no significant and material order passed by any regulators or courts or tribunals, impac�ng the going 
concern status of the Company and its future opera�ons.

29. Environment And Safety:

The Company is conscious of the importance of environmentally clean and safe opera�ons. The Company’s policy requires 
conduct of opera�ons in such a manner, so as to ensure safety of all concerned, compliances of environmental regula�ons 
and preserva�on of natural resources.

30. Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on 
& Redressal) Act, 2013:

The Company has in place an An�-Sexual Harassment Policy, in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013. During the year under review, the Company did not 
receive any complaint.

31. Instances of Fraud, if any reported by the Auditors:

There have been no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors under Sec�on 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

32. Secretarial Standards:

The Company complies with the Secretarial Standards, issued by the Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India, which are 
mandatorily applicable to the Company.

33. Details of Proceedings Under IBC & OTS, If Any:

There is no proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. Further, there was no instance of one �me 
se�lement with any Bank or Financial Ins�tu�on.

34. Disclosure of Accoun�ng Treatment:

In the prepara�on of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Accoun�ng Standards referred to in Sec�on 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The significant accoun�ng policies which are consistently applied are set out in the Notes 
to the Financial Statements.

35. Disclosure of Maintenance of Cost Records:

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-sec�on (1) of sec�on 148 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, is not applicable to the Company.
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35. Disclosure of Maintenance of Cost Records:

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-sec�on (1) of sec�on 148 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, is not applicable to the Company.

36. Dematerialisa�on of Equity Shares:

Shareholders have an op�on to dematerialise their shares with either of the depositories viz NSDL and CDSL. The ISIN No. 
allo�ed is INE0QA601016.

37. Acknowledgement:

Your Directors express their sincere thanks and apprecia�on to Promoters and Shareholders for their constant support and 
coopera�on. Your Directors also place on record their grateful apprecia�on and coopera�on received from Bankers, Financial 
Ins�tu�ons, Government Agencies and employees of the Company.

                                           For and on behalf of the Board,

Mr. Pra�kkumar M. Vekariya  
Managing Director
DIN: 06951893                                  

Mr. Nayankumar M. Pansuriya
Whole�me Director
DIN: 06951820

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 29/08/2025                   
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INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 134(3)(M) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH 
RULE 8(3) OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 PERTAINING TO CONSERVATION OF 
ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

(A) Conserva�on of Energy

i.    Steps taken or impact on conserva�on of energy: NIL
ii.   Steps taken for u�lizing alternate sources of energy: NIL
iii.  Capital Investment on annexureva�on equipment: NIL

(B) Technology Absorp�on:

I.    Efforts made towards technology absorp�on: NIL
ii.   Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduc�on, product development or import subs�tu�on: NIL
iii.  Informa�on regarding technology imported, during the last 3 years: NIL
iv.  Expenditure incurred on Research and Development: NIL

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

i.   The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the 
    year in terms of actual ou�lows

For and on behalf of the Board,

Annexure-A 

Par�culars 2024-25(In Lakhs) 2023-24(In Lakhs)

Total Foreign Exchange Earned

Total Foreign Exchange Outgo 4.92 195.22

216.46 -

Mr. Pra�kkumar M. Vekariya  
Managing Director
DIN: 06951893                                  

Mr. Nayankumar M. Pansuriya
Whole�me Director
DIN: 06951820

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 29/08/2025                   
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Annexure-B 

FORM NO. AOC -2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-sec�on (3) of sec�on 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of par�culars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related par�es referred to in 
sub sec�on (1) of sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transac�on under third proviso 
thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transac�ons not at Arm’s length basis.: NIL

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transac�ons at Arm’s length basis.

SI 
No.

Name of the 
Related Party

Nature of 
rela�on

ship

Nature of 
Contract

Dura�on of 
the contracts/
arrangements/

transac�on

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements or 

transac�on 
including the 
value, if any

Date of 
approval/

Rec�fica�on 
by the Board

Date of 
approval 

by the 
Members

Amount 
paid as 

advances, 
if any

1.
Mr. Pra�kkumar 

Vekariyae
Director Rent

The rec�fica�on 
has been carried 
out for a period 

of one year

· The rent shall be 
paid within 10th 

date of the month.

01/05/2024
Not 

Required
NIL

2.
Mr. Nayankumar 

Pansuriya
Director Rent

The rec�fica�on 
has been carried 
out for a period 

of one year

· The rent shall be 
paid within 10th 

date of the month.

01/05/2024
Not 

Required
NIL

3.
Nutan N 

Pansuriya
Rela�ve 

of Director
Service

The rec�fica�on 
has been carried 
out for a period 

of one year

The amount is paid 
based on the tasks 

assigned and is paid 
for the work done 

in a month. The 
amount is fixed 
and is paid as a 

salary.

01/05/2024
Not 

Required
NIL

4.
Mitalben P 

Vekariya
Rela�ve 

of Director
Service

The rec�fica�on 
has been carried 
out for a period 

of one year

The amount is paid 
based on the tasks 

assigned and is paid 
for the work done 

in a month. The 
amount is fixed 
and is paid as a 

salary.

01/05/2024
Not 

Required
NIL

5.
Pipeflow 

Integrity India 
Private Limited

Subsidiary Purchase

The rec�fica�on 
has been carried 
out for a period 

of one year

Pipeline related 
specialized services

01/05/2024
Not 

Required
NIL
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Annexure-B 

6.

Pratham 
Interna�onal 
Contrac�ng 

LLC-OPC 

Wholly 
owned 

Subsidiary 
Sales

The rec�fica�on 
has been carried 
out for a period 

of one year

Payment will be 
made within nine 
months from the 

date the machinery 
is received

01/05/2024
Not 

Required
NIL

For and on behalf of the Board,

Mr. Pra�kkumar M. Vekariya  
Managing Director
DIN: 06951893                                  

Mr. Nayankumar M. Pansuriya
Whole�me Director
DIN: 06951820

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 29/08/2025                   
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Annexure-C

For and on behalf of the Board,

Mr. Pra�kkumar M. Vekariya  
Managing Director
DIN: 06951893                                  

Mr. Nayankumar M. Pansuriya
Whole�me Director
DIN: 06951820

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 29/08/2025                   

FORM AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-sec�on (3) of Sec�on 129 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with

Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

PART “A”: SUBSIDIARIES

Statement pursuant to Sec�on 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Subsidiary Companies

(In AED)

Sr. No. Par�culars Details

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Name of the subsidiary Pratham Interna�onal Contrac�ng LLC-OPC

Date of Incorpora�on 26.06.2024

Repor�ng Period 31.03.2025

Economic License No. CN-5382175

Unified Registra�on No. 101-2024-200001160

Share capital 50000 AED

Reserves & surplus 151451.24

Total assets 2960651.75

Total Liabili�es 2759200.51

Investments 0

Turnover 300300

Profit before taxa�on 176962.24

Provision for taxa�on 0

Proposed Dividend 0

% of shareholding 100%

Note:
Pipeflow Integrity India Private Limited ceased to be the subsidiary company of Pratham EPC Projects Ltd. from 03/03/2025

PART “B”: ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
The Company does not have any Associate Companies / Jvs.
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Annexure-D

Management Discussion and Analysis

1. Global Economic Outlook

The global economy in FY 2024–25 operated in a landscape 
shaped by con�nued infla�onary pressures, elevated interest 
rates, and geopoli�cal uncertain�es. While advanced 
economies such as the US and Eurozone saw moderate 
growth, Asia remained the growth engine of the world. 
According to the Interna�onal Monetary Fund (IMF), global 
GDP growth stood at around 3.2% in 2024, and is expected to 
remain between 3.0–3.3% in 2025–26, reflec�ng resilience 
despite uncertainty.

Commodity markets remained vola�le during the year, 
par�cularly oil and gas, due to geopoli�cal conflicts and 
supply disrup�ons. However, global infrastructure investments, 
digital transforma�on, and the ongoing energy transi�on have 
created stable demand for EPC and construc�on services 
worldwide. For EPC companies, this meant that while risks 
from global vola�lity persisted, opportuni�es also grew in 
renewable infrastructure, oil & gas pipelines, and urban 
u�li�es.

2. Indian Economic Outlook

India con�nued to be one of the fastest-growing large 
economies in the world, maintaining its posi�on as the 
third-largest global economy in PPP terms. FY 2024–25 saw 
India’s GDP expand by 6.5%, with a par�cularly strong 
performance in the last quarter where growth touched 7.4%. 
This was driven by buoyant domes�c demand, robust 
manufacturing ac�vity, and record public capital expenditure.

Government ini�a�ves like PM Ga�Shak�, Na�onal 
Infrastructure Pipeline (NIP), and heavy investment in roads, 
railways, ports, power, and oil & gas sectors played a cataly�c 
role. Crude oil demand rose to all-�me highs, making India 
the largest driver of global oil demand growth, surpassing 
even China. Infrastructure-related reforms, ease of doing 

Looking ahead, forecasts for FY 2025–26 remain in the 
6.3–6.5% range, sugges�ng con�nued momentum. For 
Pratham EPC Projects Limited, this macroeconomic backdrop 
translates into a robust pipeline of opportuni�es across oil, 
gas, and water transmission projects.

business improvements, and public-private partnership 
opportuni�es have made India an a�rac�ve market for EPC 
companies.

3. Oil & Gas Industry Outlook

The Indian oil & gas sector remained a major driver of EPC 
growth. India currently consumes around 5.05 million barrels 
per day of crude oil, and is expected to account for more than 
one-third of the world’s demand growth over the next decade. 
Natural gas infrastructure is also expanding rapidly, with 
increasing investments in city gas distribu�on (CGD), LNG 
terminals, and cross-country gas pipelines.

Government reforms such as “One Na�on, One Grid, One 
Tariff” in gas and con�nued investment in clean fuel projects 
are enhancing opportuni�es for EPC service providers. For 
companies like Pratham EPC, this means access to a growing 
set of projects not only in pipelines but also in suppor�ng 
facili�es such as compressor sta�ons, refineries, and terminals.

Addi�onal ly,  vola�l ity in global  oi l  pr ices and 
shi�ing geopoli�cs in energy supply chains have prompted 
Indian companies to priori�ze domes�c infrastructure 
building, thereby crea�ng consistent demand for domes�c 
EPC execu�on.

4. EPC & Infrastructure Industry Outlook

The EPC industry in India is witnessing structural tailwinds. 
The Union Budget 2024–25 allocated record levels of public 
capex, with significant por�ons directed to transport, water, 
oil & gas, and industrial corridors. The logis�cs sector alone is 
projected to grow at 10.7% CAGR through 2026, boosted by 
integrated ini�a�ves such as PM Ga�Shak� and the Na�onal 
Logis�cs Policy.
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The financial year 2024–25 was a landmark year for Pratham 
EPC Projects Limited. The Company not only delivered solid 
domes�c performance but also took a historic step towards 
interna�onal expansion with the incorpora�on of its Wholly 
Owned Subsidiary (WOS) in the UAE – Pratham Interna�onal 
Contrac�ng LLC (OPC).

This subsidiary quickly achieved trac�on, securing a 
pres�gious project worth USD 19.75 million, employing over 
250 skilled professionals on ground. This achievement 
demonstrates both the Company’s ability to execute on 
interna�onal soil and the trust it commands among global 
clients.

This creates significant opportuni�es for EPC players to 
contribute to mega projects involving pipelines, water 
transmission networks, and industrial u�li�es. Increasing 
adop�on of digital tools, drones, and AI-enabled project 
management has further improved efficiency, accuracy, and 
safety in EPC execu�on.

For Pratham EPC Projects Limited, which already has a
demonstrated track record in cross-country pipelines, this 
sector outlook aligns perfectly with its competencies. The 
Company is well-posi�oned to leverage its exper�se and 
strong client rela�onships to capture a larger market share in 
the coming years.

5. Company Performance – FY 2024–25

Financial Highlights (₹ in Crores)

Par�culars FY 2024–25

Revenue from Opera�ons

Other Income

Total Income

EBITDA

EBITDA Margin %

Finance Cost

Share Capital

3.72

117.78

121.5

36.31

21.05%

1.16

17.76

Reserves & Surplus

Net Worth

Long-Term Borrowings

56.61

74.37

4.19

The Company’s EBITDA margin of 21% reflects improved 
efficiency, �ght cost control, and strong project execu�on 
capabili�es. With low debt levels (long-term borrowings of 
₹4.19 Cr), Pratham EPC has maintained a strong balance 
sheet while expanding globally.

6. Strategic Highlights

Interna�onal Expansion: Establishment of UAE subsidiary 
provides a base for expansion into the wider GCC region 
(Saudi Arabia, Oman, Qatar).

Overseas Project Success: Timely execu�on of a large-value 
order showcases ability to compete globally.
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Domes�c Growth: Robust order book with execu�on 
visibility of 24–30 months, ensuring stable revenues.

Focus on Sustainability: Adop�on of greener prac�ces, 
improved safety standards, and investment in digital 
tools for project delivery.

7. SWOT Analysis

Strengths

• Proven track record in EPC execu�on across oil, gas, and 
   water sectors.
• Strong financial health with low debt and healthy margins.
• Growing interna�onal presence through UAE subsidiary.

Weaknesses
• Dependence on commodity price cycles for raw material 
   costs.
• Capital-intensive nature of EPC industry requires high 
   working capital.

Opportuni�es

• Expanding domes�c oil & gas infrastructure.
• Rising EPC demand in Middle East markets.
• Scope for diversifica�on into renewable energy EPC.

Threats

• Vola�lity in crude oil prices and foreign exchange.
• Geopoli�cal instability affec�ng interna�onal projects.
• Rising compe��on from larger global EPC companies.

8. Human Resources

As of March 31, 2025, Pratham EPC had a total strength of 
over 408 employees, including more than 250 professionals 
deployed overseas in the UAE. The Company con�nues to 
emphasize training, safety awareness, and leadership 
development. Special focus is being given to building 
cross-border teams and enhancing global exposure for 
employees.

9. Future Outlook

With a Net Worth of ₹743.7 Cr, strong execu�on capabili�es, 
and a strategic foothold in the Middle East, Pratham EPC 
Projects Limited is posi�oned for accelerated growth in the 
coming years. The Company’s focus on strengthening its order 
book, exploring new geographies, and maintaining opera�onal 
efficiency will con�nue to create long-term value for 
stakeholders.

Looking forward, Pratham aims to consolidate its domes�c 
leadership in EPC execu�on while building a sustainable 
interna�onal presence in the MENA region. With a 
commitment to safety, sustainability, and stakeholder value, 
the Company is on track to establish itself as a globally 
relevant EPC enterprise

51



Ra�o Analysis:

For the performance of the year, the company is sta�ng the details of the undermen�oned ra�os indica�ng the performance 
and also sta�ng significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year) in 
key financial ra�os, along with its explana�ons which are as under:

Sr. No. Ra�o 
For the year 
ended as at 
31.03.2025

For the year 
ended as at 
31.03.2024

% Change
Explana�on, where % change is more 

than 25%

1. Debtors Turnover 5.09 4.31 18.00% NA

2. Inventory Turnover 3.81 4.25 -10.45% NA

3. Interest Coverage Ra�o 16.83 8.12 107.21%

The Interest Coverage Ra�o has 
improved significantly on account of 
be�er opera�ng performance and 

reduc�on in finance costs during the 
year, reflec�ng the Company’s 

stronger ability to meet its debt 
obliga�ons

4. Current Ra�o 3.56 4.38 -13.91% NA

5. Debt Equity Ra�o 0.16 0.06 187.79%
It is primarily increased due to 

Increase in Borrowings during the year.

6. Opera�ng Profit 
Margin (%)

16.59% 22.38% -25.88%

The Opera�ng Profit Margin has 
decreased mainly due to higher 

opera�ng expenses during the year, 
which impacted profitability despite 

growth in revenue.

7. Net Profit Margin (%) 11.49% 14.60% -21.28% NA

8. Return on Net Worth (%) 20.02% 25.49% -21.47% NA

Notes:

a  Above ra�os were based on the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company.

b.  Defini�ons of ra�os:

I.  Debtors’ turnover: Net Credit Sales / Average Account Receivable.

ii.  Inventory turnover: Net Sales / Average Inventory

iii.  Interest coverage ra�o: Total EBIT by finance cost for the year.

iv.  Current ra�o: Current assets / Current liabili�es

v.  Debt equity ra�o: Total Debt / Shareholder’s Equity

vi. Opera�ng profit margin: Opera�ng EBIDTA by revenue from opera�ons for the year

vii.  Net profit margin: Profit for the year by total income for the year.

viii.  Return on net worth: Profit for the year by average Total Equity
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Internal control systems and their adequacy.

The Company has adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the size and nature of its business. For the 
FY 2024-2025, M/s Rohan Thakkar & Co., Chartered Accountants and in-house audit team carried out internal audits and 
the internal audit reports prepared by them were placed before the Audit Commi�ee.

Cau�onary statement

The Statement in this Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company’s objec�ves, projec�ons, 
es�mates, expecta�ons or predic�ons may be ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and 
regula�ons. Actual results might differ substan�ally or materially from those expressed or implied. Important developments 
that could affect the Company’s opera�ons include demand-supply condi�ons, changes in government and interna�onal 
regula�ons, tax regimes, economic developments within and outside India and other factors such as li�ga�on and labour 
rela�ons.
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Annexure-E

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
STCSR REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2024

[Pursuant to Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013]

Sr. No.

1.

Par�culars Informa�on

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company The Company aims to demonstrate its social responsibility 
with special emphasis on improvement of health, educa�on, 
environment sustainability and other spheres as decided by 
the Board.

2. The Composi�on of the CSR Commi�ee: As per Sec�on 135(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 if the amount to 
be spent by a company under sec�on 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 does not Rs. 50.00 lakh, then the 
requirement under 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for cons�tu�on of the Corporate Social Responsibility 
Commi�ee is not be applicable and the func�ons of such CSR Commi�ee as provided under sec�on 135 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 shall, be discharged by the Board of Directors the Company. The Company was 
required to spend Rs. 11.55 Lakh towards CSR during the year 2023-24. Accordingly, the Company has not 
cons�tuted CSR commi�ee and func�ons of CSR commi�ee are being discharged by the Board of Directors 
of the Company.

Name of Director
Sl. 

No.

Designa�on / 
Nature of

Directorship

Number of mee�ngs of
CSR Commi�ee held

during the year

Number of 
mee�ngs of CSR

Commi�ee a�ended 
during the year

1.
Mr. Pra�kkumar M.

Vekariya

Chairman &
Managing
Director

NA NA

2.
Mr. Nayankumar M.

Pansuriya
Whole Time

Director
NA NA

3. Mr. Abhaya P. Sarangi Director NA NA

4.

5.

Ms. Garima Rajput

Mr. Mehul N. Thummar

Director 

Director 

NA NA

NA NA

* The Board of Directors in their mee�ng approved CSR contribu�on/ amount to be spent during the 
year 2024-25.All the Directors were present at the said mee�ng.

3.
Provide the web-link(s) where Composi�on 
of CSR Commi�ee CSR Policy and CSR 
projects approved by the board are disclosed 
on the website of the company.

www.prathamepc.com

4. Provide the execu�ve summary along with 
web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR 
projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) 
of rule 8, if applicable.

Not Applicable

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per 
sub-sec�on (5) of sec�on 135.

Rs. 97,90,5000

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the 
company as per sub-sec�on (5) of sec�on 135.

Rs. 19,58,100/-

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 
programmes or ac�vi�es of the previous 
financial years.

Nil
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(d) Amount required to be set off for the 
financial year 2023-24, if any

Nil

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial 
year 2023-24 [(b)+(c)-(d)].

Rs. 19,58,100/-

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects 
(both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project).

Rs. 19,65,000/-

(b) Amount spent in Administra�ve Overheads. Nil 

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable. Not Applicable 

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 2024-25 [(a)+(b)+(c)]. Rs. 19,65,000

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)Total Amount 
Spent for The 
Financial Year 

2024-25 
(in Rs.)

Total Amount Transferred 
to Unspent CSR Account 

as per sub-sec�on (6) 
of sec�on 135.

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 
second proviso to sub-sec�on (5) 

of sec�on 135.

Amount
Date of 
Transfer

Date of 
Transfer

AmountName of Fund

19,65,000/- Nil N.A — Nil N.A

(f) Excess amount for set off, if any: - 

Sr. No. Par�culars 
Amount
(in Rs.)

(1) (2) (3)

(i)
(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as 
per sub-sec�on (5) of sec�on 135

19,58,100

(b) Amount available for set off from FY 2023-24 31,764

19,26,336(a)-(b) Total CSR obliga�on for the financial year 2024-25

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 2023-24 19,65,000

Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 38,664/-(iii)

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or Programmes or 
ac�vi�es of the previous financial years, if any

(iv) Nil

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 38,664/-

(g) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: NA

Amount unspent in Rs. Rs. 0

Total Amount Spent 
for the F.Y. 2024-25

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 
sec�on 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as 
per second proviso to (5)sec�on 135

NA
Amount Date of transfer

Name of 
the fund 

Amount
Date of 
transfer

NA
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(h) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

Name 
of the 

Project

Sr. 
No

Item 
from 

the list 
of 

ac�vi�es 
in Sch.
-VII to 

the Act

Local 
Area 
(Yes/ 
No)

Loca�on 
of the 

project

Project 
Dura�on

Amt. 
allocated 

for the 
project
(in Rs.)

Amt. 
spent in 

the 
current 

F.Y. 
(in Rs.)

Amt. 
transferred 

to the 
unspent 

CSR 
account 
for the 
project 
as per 

sec 
135(6) 
(in Rs.)

Mode 
of 

implem
en�on-
Direct 
(Yes/
No)

Mode of 
impleme

n�on-
Through 
impleme

n�ng 
agency.

St
at

e

D
is

tr
ic

t

N
am

e

C
SR

 R
eg

is
tr

a�
on

 N
o.

(i) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

Name 
of the 

Project

Sr. 
No

Item 
from 

the list 
of 

ac�vi�es 
in Sch.
-VII to 

the Act

Local 
Area 
(Yes/ 
No)

Loca�on 
of the 

project

Project 
Dura�on

Amt. 
allocated 

for the 
project
(in Rs.)

Amt. 
spent in 

the 
current 

F.Y. 
(in Rs.)

Amt. 
transferred 

to the 
unspent 

CSR 
account 
for the 
project 
as per 

sec 
135(6) 
(in Rs.)

Mode 
of 

implem
en�on-
Direct 
(Yes/
No)

Mode of 
impleme

n�on-
Through 
impleme

n�ng 
agency.

St
at

e

D
is

tr
ic

t

N
am

e

C
SR

 R
eg

is
tr

a�
on

 N
o.

1.

Health
care 

Support
i Yes

Guj
arat

Ah
me
da

bad

1 year 800000 800000 0 Yes NA NA
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2.
Educ
a�on 

support
ii Yes

Guj
arat

Ah
me
da

bad

1 year 15000 0 Yes NA NA

3.

Armed 
Forces 

Flag Day 
Fund

Yes NA NA 800000 800000 0 Yes NA NA

4.
Animal 

Care

iv

Yes
Guj
arat

Ah
me
da

bad

1 year 350000 0 No

Bez
uba
an

Cha
rita
ble
tru
st

NA

NA

15000

vi 350000

7. (a) Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three financial years:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Sr. 
No.

Prece
ding

Finan
cial

Years

Amount
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR
Account
under 

sub-sec�on
(6) of 

sec�on 135.
(in Rs.)

Balance
Amount in
Unspent

CSR
Account
under 

sub-sec�on
(6) of

sec�on 135
(in Rs.)

Amount
Spent
in the
Finan
cial
Year

Amount transferred to
a fund as specified 

under Schedule VII as 
per second provison
 to sub-sec�on (5) of 

sec�on135, if any.

Amount remai
ning to be spent 

in succeeding 
Financial year

(in Rs)

Defi
ciency, 
if any

Amount
(in Rs)

Date of
transfer

Nil/ Not Applicable

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate 
Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

No

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired  

Furnish the details rela�ng to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social 
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

Sl.No. Short par�culars of
the property or

asset(s) [including 
complete address 

and loca�on of the 
property]

Pincode 
of the 

property 
or asset(s)

Date of 
crea�on

Amount 
of CSR 

amount 
spent

Details of 
en�ty / 

Authority/ 
Beneficiary of 
the registered 

owner

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

CSR 
Registra�on 
number, if 
applicable

Name Registered 
Address

— — — — — — — —

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal Office/Municipal 
Corpora�on/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable property as well as boundaries)
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9.
Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the 
average net profit as per sec�on 135(5)

Not Applicable

Mr. Pra�kkumar M. Vekariya  
Managing Director
DIN: 06951893                                  

Mr. Nayankumar M. Pansuriya
Whole�me Director
DIN: 06951820

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 29/08/2025                   
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Annexure-F
Cer�ficate No. 15/2025-26

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

[Pursuant to sec�on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule
No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on Personnel)

Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

To,

The Members,

Pratham EPC Projects Limited

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate prac�ces by Pratham EPC Projects Limited (hereina�er called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 

manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evalua�ng the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 

my opinion thereon. Based on my verifica�on of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the company and also the informa�on provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 

authorized representa�ves during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, 

during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed 

hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the  extent, in the 

manner and subject to the repor�ng made hereina�er:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for 

the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of 

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

II. The Securi�es Contracts (Regula�on) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula�ons and Bye-laws Framed there under.

IV. The following Regula�ons and Guidelines prescribed under the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(‘SEBI Act’):-

a. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Substan�al Acquisi�on of Shares and Takeovers) Regula�ons, 2011;

b. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 1992;

c. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regula�ons, 1993 

regarding   the Companies Act and dealing with client;

d.Securi�es And Exchange Board Of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons And Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015

e.Securi�es And Exchange Board Of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2018

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

I. Secretarial Standards issued by The Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India.

II. The Lis�ng Agreements entered into by the Company with Na�onal  Stock Exchange;
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regula�ons, Guidelines, 

Standards, etc. men�oned above subject to the following observa�on:

1. During the year company issued preferen�al shares. However, the allotment completed in the F.Y. 2025-26.

Adequate no�ce is given to all directors to schedule the Board Mee�ngs, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at 

least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further informa�on and clarifica�ons on the 

agenda items before the mee�ng and for meaningful par�cipa�on at the mee�ng. Majority decision is carried through while 

the dissen�ng members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and opera�ons 

of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regula�ons and guidelines.

Place : Ahmedabad

Date :  26/08/2025

Viral A Garachh

Company Secretary,

ACS No. 12558

C P No.: 15293

Peer Review No. 4263/2023

UDIN: F012558G001081835
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This report to be read with my le�er of even date which is annexed as annexure and forms an integral part of the report

ANNEXURE A

To,

The Members,

Pratham EPC Projects Limited

My report of even date is to be read along with this le�er:

1. Maintenance of the secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. My responsibility is to be 

express as opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit prac�ce and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verifica�on was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are 

reflected in secretarial record. I believe that the processes and the prac�ces, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the company.

4. Whenever required I have obtained the management representa�on about the compliance of laws, rules and regula�on and 

happening of the events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable law, Rules, Regula�on, Standard is the responsibility of 

management. My examina�on was limited to the verifica�on of procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effec�veness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place : Ahmedabad

Date :  26/08/2025

Viral A Garachh

Company Secretary,

ACS No. 12558

C P No.: 15293

Peer Review No. 4263/2023

UDIN: F012558G001081835
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Annexure-G

Par�culars of Employees
(Pursuant to the provision of Rule 5(1) of the Companies Appointment and remunera�on of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014

The informa�on under Sec�on 197 of the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 

The ra�o of the remunera�on of each director to the median remunera�on of the employees of the Company and 
percentage increase in remunera�on of each Director, Chief Execu�ve Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary 
in the financial year:

Name 
Ra�o to median 
Remunera�on

% increase in 
remunera�on in 

the financial year 

Execu�ve Directors
  Mr. Pra�kkumar M. Vekariya 27.95 0.00%
  Mr. Nayankumar M. Pansuriya 27.95 0.00%

Non Execu�ve Directors
 Abhaya Pada Sarangi

 Mehul Nanjibhai Thummar
0.99** -29.20%

1.26** -10.00%
 Garima Rajput 0.41** -70.80%

Chief Financial Officer
 Yogesh Vasantbhai Joglekar 2.93 10.56%
Company Secreatry

 Bhavasthi Rahul Mehta

 Palak Sharma

0.00 -100.00%

3.63 NA*

*   Not applicable since appointed of the respected person is appointed in the period 2024-2025
** The above remunera�on does not include the remunera�on payable to directors.

I.  The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company are 408.
ii. The Company affirms that the remunera�on is as per the remunera�on policy of the Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board,

Mr. Pra�kkumar M. Vekariya  
Managing Director
DIN: 06951893                                  

Mr. Nayankumar M. Pansuriya
Whole�me Director
DIN: 06951820

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 29/08/2025                   
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of 

Pratham EPC Projects Limited

(Formerly known as Pratham EPC Projects Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Pratham EPC Projects Limited (Formerly known as 
st

Pratham EPC Projects Private Limited) ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31  March, 2025, the 
st

Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31  March, 2025 and notes to the Standalone 

financial statements, including a summary of significant accoun�ng policies and other explanatory informa�on (hereina�er 

referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the aforesaid standalone

 financial statements give the informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from �me to �me (“the Act”) 

in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in 
st

India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31  March 2025, its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that 

date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng (“SAs”) specified

under Sec�on 143 (10) of the Act. Our responsibili�es under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor's 

Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements” sec�on of our report. We are independent of the 

Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 

ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act 

and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements 

and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion. 

V C A N & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Pratham EPC Projects Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financials Statement for Year ended on 31st March, 2025
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Key Audit Ma�ers 

Key Audit Ma�ers are those ma�ers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
st

standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 31  March, 2025. In our opinion there is no Key Audit 

Ma�er to be reported.

Informa�on other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors' Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the prepara�on of other informa�on. The otherinforma�on 

comprises the informa�on included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements 

and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connec�on with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informa�on 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informa�on, 

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibili�es and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone 
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the ma�ers stated in Sec�on 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 

prepara�on of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial posi�on, financial 

performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, 

including the accoun�ng standards specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 

assets of the Company and for preven�ng and detec�ng frauds and other irregulari�es; selec�on and applica�on of 

appropriate accoun�ng policies; making judgments and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring 

the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, relevant to the prepara�on and presenta�on of the 

standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 

con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 

V C A N & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Pratham EPC Projects Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financials Statement for Year ended on 31st March, 2025
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Auditor's Responsibili�es for the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor’s Report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 

error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 

the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scep�cism 

throughout the audit. We also: 

i. Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from 

fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, 

misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control. 

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 

opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the opera�ng 

effec�veness of such controls. 

iii. Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates and 

related disclosures made by management. 

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi�ons that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our Auditor's Report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our Auditor's Report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the 

Company to cease to con�nue as a going concern.

V C A N & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Pratham EPC Projects Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financials Statement for Year ended on 31st March, 2025
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v. Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in a 

manner that achieves fair presenta�on.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonable knowledgeable user of the standalone financial 

statements may be influenced. 

We consider quan�ta�ve materiality and qualita�ve factors in 

a. planning the scope of our audit work and in evalua�ng the results of our work; and

b. to evaluate the effect of any iden�fied misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and �ming 

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we iden�fy 

during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those ma�ers that were of most 
st

significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31  March, 2025 and are 

therefore the key audit ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our Auditor's Report unless law or regula�on precludes 

public disclosure about the ma�er or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a ma�er should not 

be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communica�on.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of 

India in terms of sub-sec�on (11) of Sec�on 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the ma�ers 

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)  We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our knowledge 

     and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it

     appears from our examina�on of those books;

V C A N & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Pratham EPC Projects Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financials Statement for Year ended on 31st March, 2025
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c)  The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Standalone Cash Flow 

    Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accoun�ng Standards 

     specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

st
e)  On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors as on 31  March, 2025 taken on 

st     record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31  March, 2025 from being 

     appointed as a director in terms of Sec�on 164 (2) of the Act;

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial repor�ng of the Company 

    and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure B;

g)  With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 

     requirements of sec�on 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion, and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the 

remunera�on paid by the Company to its Directors during the years is in accordance with the provisions of 

Sec�on 197 of the Act; 

h)  With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

     Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and 

     according to the explana�ons given to us;

I.  The Company does not have any pending li�ga�ons which would impact its financial posi�on;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including deriva�ve contracts for which there were 

    any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  No amount was required to be transferred to the Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund (“IEPF”) by 

     the Company;

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material 

either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds 

or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or en�ty, 

including foreign en�ty (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise, 

that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied 

in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ul�mate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 

security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries;

iv. a. 

V C A N & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Pratham EPC Projects Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financials Statement for Year ended on 31st March, 2025
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b. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material 

    either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or en�ty, including 

    foreign en�ty (“Funding Par�es”), with the understanding, whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise, that the 

    Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner 

    whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ul�mate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 

    the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries;

c. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate   in the circumstances, 

    nothing has come to our no�ce that has caused us to believe that the representa�ons under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 

     Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v.  No dividend has been declared or has been proposed to be declared during the year. Accordingly, this clause is not 

    applicable.

vi . Based on our examina�on, which included test checks, the Company has used accoun�ng so�ware systems for   

     maintaining its books of account for the year ended 31st March, 2025 which have the feature of recording audit trail 

     (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transac�ons recorded in the so�ware 

     systems. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being 

     tampered with, and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record 

     reten�on.

For, V C A N & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:125172W

CA. Saurabh Jain 
Partner, 
Membership No. 175015

V C A N & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Pratham EPC Projects Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financials Statement for Year ended on 31st March, 2025

UDIN: 25175015BMIBEH6181
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 29/05/2025
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Annexure 'A' to the Independent Auditor's Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement' of our report of 
st

even date to the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31  March, 2025:

(i)(a)(A)   The Company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars, including quan�ta�ve details and 

                situa�on of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(i)(a)(B)   The Company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars of intangible assets.

(i)(b)        According to the informa�on given to us, the Property, Plant and Equipment, have been physically verified by 

                the management at the end of the year; and no material discrepancies has been no�ced on such verifica�on. 

                Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(i)(c)         According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of the records 

                of the Company, the Company does not own any immovable property as at the Balance Sheet date.

(i)(d)        The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or intangible 
st                assets during the year ended 31  March, 2025. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(d) of the 

                Order is not applicable to the Company.

(i)(e)         As explained to us, there are no proceedings ini�ated or are pending against the Company for holding any 

        benami property under the Prohibi�on of Benami Property Transac�ons Act, 1988 and rules made 

          thereunder. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to 

                 the Company.

(ii)(a)         As explained to us, physical verifica�on of inventory is being conducted at regular intervals by the 

                 management and no discrepancies were found during verifica�on. 

(ii)(b)        The Company has been sanc�oned working capital limits in excess of ₹ 5.00 crores, in aggregate, at any 

                 point of �me during the year, from banks on the basis of 

V C A N & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Pratham EPC Projects Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financials Statement for Year ended on 31st March, 2025
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               security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, no 

       quarterly returns or statements comprising informa�on on stock, book debt, ageing analysis of the 

                 debtors/other receivables and other s�pulated financial informa�on is filed by the Company with such banks.    

(iii)(a)(A)  The Company has made investments in, provided guarantee or security and granted loans or advances in the

          nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other 

              par�es during the year, in respect of which the Company has provided loans and guarantee (in respect of 

                  loans) during the year to Pratham Interna�onal LLC-OPC  and details of which are given below:

(iii)(a)(B) The Company has not provided loans or advances and guarantees or securi�es to par�es other than its 

                 subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. 

(iii)(b)       The investments made, guarantees provided and the terms and condi�ons of the grant of all the above-

                 men�oned loans and guarantees provided during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial 

                 to the Company's interest.

(iii)(c)        No, the loans and advances provided in the nature of loans, doesn't have any schedule of repayment of 

                principal, accordingly the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the

                  company.

(iii)(d)       No amount is overdue for more than ninety days. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d) 

                 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii)(e)       No loans granted by the Company which had fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended 

           or fresh loans granted to se�le the overdue of exis�ng loans given to the same par�es. Accordingly, the 

                 requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii)(f)        There was no loan which were granted during the year to promoters/related par�es. Accordingly, the 

                 requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Par�culars Investment Loans&Advance
Nature of

Rela�onship

Aggregate amount
provided during

the year

        _ 410.00 Subsidiary

Balance outstanding
st

as at 31  March,2025
11.90 461.61 Subsidiary
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(iv)        The Company has not granted loans or provided guarantees or securi�es to par�es covered under Sec�on 185 of the 

            Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). According to the informa�on provided to us, the Company has complied with the 

          provisions of sec�on 186 of the Act in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securi�es 

             provided, as applicable.

(v)        The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public within the meaning of Sec�ons 73 to sec�on 76 of the 

             Act and the rules made there under during the period under audit and therefore, provisions of the clause 3(v) of the 

             order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi)        The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Sec�on 148 (1) of the Act for the 

             business ac�vi�es carried out by the Company. Accordingly, repor�ng under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable 

             to the Company.

(vii)(a)  The Company is generally regular in deposi�ng undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' 

       state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs and any other statutory dues with the 

             appropriate authori�es. No undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, 

              income-tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs and any other statutory dues were outstanding at the year end, 

               for a period of more than six months from the dates they become payable.  Therefore, the requirement to report on

               clause 3(vii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii)(b)    Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on 31st March,

              2025 on account of any dispute are given below:

Nature of the dues Amount
Period to which the

amount relates

Forum where dispute is 
pending

Service Tax

Goods and Service Tax

Goods and Service Tax

Income Tax

1.97

17.08

22.75

25.62

FY 2015-16

FY 2017-18

FY 2020-21

FY 2020-21

Assistant Commissioner,
CGST and Service Tax

Joint / Addi�onal
Commissioner of GST

Joint / Addi�onal
Commissioner of GST

(viii)        The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transac�on, previously unrecorded in the books of account,

               in the tax assessments under the Income Tax 
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             Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not 

             applicable to the Company.

(ix)(a)   On the basis of the documents and explana�on provided by the management, the Company has not defaulted in 

            the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(ix)(b)  The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial ins�tu�on or government or any 

            government authority.

(ix)(c)   As per the informa�on provided by the management, term loans availed by the Company during the year were 

            applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

(ix)(d)   On an overall examina�on of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis 

             have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(ix)(e)    On an overall examina�on of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any 

              funds from any en�ty or person on account of or to meet the obliga�ons of its subsidiaries, associates or joint 

              ventures. Therefore, requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(f)    The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securi�es held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures 

             or associate companies.

(x)(a)    The Company has not raised money during the year by way of ini�al public offer/further public offer (including debt 

            instruments), therefore the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(x)(b)    The Company has not made any preferen�al allotment or private placement of shares /fully or par�ally or 

             op�onally conver�ble debentures during the year under audit and therefore the requirement to report on clause 

             3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi)(a)   According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its 

            officers or employees has been no�ced or reported during the course of our audit. Therefore, requirement to 

            report on clause 3(xi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xi)(b)   During the year, no report under sub-sec�on (12) of Sec�on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by Cost 

            Auditor/ Secretarial Auditor or by us in Form ADT – 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 

      Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. Accordingly, repor�ng under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not 

            applicable to the Company.

(xi)(c)   As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during 

            the year. Accordingly, repor�ng under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xii)      The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence repor�ng under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii)     According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, transac�ons with the related par�es are in compliance 

       with Sec�ons 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and details of these transac�ons are disclosed by the 

            Company in the Note 37 to the standalone financial statement, as required by the applicable accoun�ng standards.

(xiv)(a) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of

             its business.

(xiv)(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued during the year and �ll the date of the audit report covering 

            period upto 31st March, 2025.

(xv)     According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on an overall examina�on of the records of the 

         Company, we report that the Company has not entered into any non-cash transac�on with directors or persons 

            connected with them as referred to in Sec�on 192 of the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, repor�ng under clause 

            3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The provisions of Sec�on 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to the 

            Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance ac�vi�es without obtained a valid 

            Cer�ficate of Registra�on (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Therefore, 

            requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xvi)(c)    The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regula�ons made by Reserve Bank of India. 

                Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(d)    There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the 

                Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii)        The Company has incurred cash losses of ₹ 779.31 Lakhs during the financial year ended March 31, 2025. The 

                Company has not incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year ended March 31, 2024.

(xviii)       There has been no resigna�on of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to report

                on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)        On the basis of the financial ra�os disclosed in Note No. 38 to the standalone financial statements, ageing and

       expected dates of realiza�on of financial assets and payment of financial liabili�es, other informa�on 

      accompanying the standalone financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 

            Management plans and based on our examina�on of the evidence suppor�ng the assump�ons, nothing has 

           come to our a�en�on, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the 

          audit report indica�ng that Company is not capable of mee�ng its liabili�es exis�ng at the date of balance 

              sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 

            that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our repor�ng is 

           based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 

              that all liabili�es falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the

              Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)         The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social responsibility (CSR) and there are no 

           unspent CSR amounts for the year requiring a transfer to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Act or special 

                account in compliance with the provision of sub-sec�on (6) of Sec�on 135 of the Act. Accordingly, repor�ng under 

                clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year. 

For, V C A N & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:125172W
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Chartered Accountants
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Partner, 
Membership No. 175015
UDIN: 25175015BMIBEH6181
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Date: 29/05/2025
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Annexure 'B' to the Independent Auditor's Report

[Referred to in Paragraph 2 (f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” sec�on of the 

Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the Members of Pratham EPC Projects Limited (Formerly known as
st

Pratham EPC Projects Private Limited) on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31  March, 2025]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements under Clause (i) of 

sub-sec�on 3 of Sec�on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("The Act")

We have audited the Internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of Pratham EPC Projects Limited (Formerly 
stknown as Pratham EPC Projects Private Limited) ("the Company") as of 31  March, 2025 in conjunc�on with our audit 

of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibili�es for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company considering the essen�al components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng issued by 

the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibili�es include the design, implementa�on and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

preven�on and detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, and the 

�mely prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibili�es

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial repor�ng with 

reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng (the "Guidance Note") and the 

Standards on Audi�ng, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Sec�on 
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143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 

internal financial controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note required that we 

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls 

operated effec�vely in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the internal financial controls with reference

 to financial statements and their opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 

repor�ng included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, assessing the risk 

that a material weakness exists, and tes�ng and evalua�ng the design and opera�ng effec�veness of internal control 

based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of 

the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng with reference to 

Standalone Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng with reference to these standalone financial statements

is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng and the 

prepara�on of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 

accoun�ng principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng with reference to these 

standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that: 

1.   Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transac�ons and 

     disposi�ons of the assets of the Company; 

2.  Provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are recorded as necessary to permit prepara�on of standalone 

      financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles and that receipts and 

      expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authoriza�ons of management and 

      directors of the Company; and 

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding preven�on or �mely detec�on of unauthorized acquisi�on, use, or 

     disposi�on of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.
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Inherent limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone

Financial Statements

Because of the Inherent limita�ons of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng with reference to these 

standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projec�ons of any evalua�on of 

the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng with reference to these standalone financial statements to 

future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financials control over financial repor�ng with reference to 

these standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or that the degree 

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion , the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial repor�ng 

with  reference to these standalone financial statements and such in internal financial controls over financial repor�ng 
stwith reference to these standalone financial statements were opera�ng effec�vely as at 31  March, 2025 based on the 

internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company considering the essen�al components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng issued by 

the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For, V C A N & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:125172W

CA. Saurabh Jain 
Partner, 
Membership No. 175015
UDIN: 25175015BMIBEH6181
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 29/05/2025
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Pratham EPC Projects Limited
(CIN:  L45200GJ2014PLC081119)

(in Lakhs)

Par�culars Note 31-March-2025 31-March-2024

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Shareholders’ funds

(a) Share Capital

(b) Reserves and Surplus

Total

3

4

 1,776.00  

5,660.91 

 1,776.00  

 4,309.35 

 7,436.91  6,085.35 

(2) Non-current liabili�es

(a) Long-term Borrowings

(b) Deferred Tax Liabili�es (net)

(c) Other Long-term Liabili�es

(d) Long-term Provisions

5

6

7

8

 419.19  

19.04  

230.80  

26.85 

 184.74  

14.87  

22.48  

18.03 

Total  695.88  240.12 

(3) Current liabili�es

(a) Short-term Borrowings

(b) Trade Payables       

      - Due to Micro and Small Enterprises       

      - Due to Others

(c) Other Current Liabili�es

(d) Short-term Provisions

 771.57 

 340.06  

412.81  

492.06  

360.91 

 153.83 

 136.35  

635.93  

358.87  

226.50 

9

10

11

12

Total

Total Equity and Liabili�es

 2,377.41  1,511.48 

 10,510.20  7,836.95 

II. ASSETS

(1) Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets       

        (i) Property, Plant and Equipment       

        (ii) Intangible Assets       

        (iii) Capital Work-in-progress

(b) Non-current Investments

(c) Other Non-current Assets

13

13

13

14

15

 1,278.45  

38.57  

154.75  

41.90  

232.89 

 1,078.67  

39.96  

0.98  

37.80  

207.96 

Total  1,746.56  1,365.37 

(2) Current assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Trade Receivables

(c) Cash and bank balances

(d) Short-term Loans and Advances

(e) Other Current Assets

16

17

18

19

20

 3,699.60  
3,070.86  
532.42  
936.36  
524.40 

 2,482.68  
1,559.11  
1,787.22  
548.61  
93.95 

Total  8,763.64  6,471.57 

 10,510.20  7,836.94 
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Pratham EPC Projects Limited
(CIN:  L45200GJ2014PLC081119)

(in Lakhs)

Par�culars Note 31-March-2025 31-March-2024

21

22

 11,777.78 

 372.12 

 6,883.40 

 242.14 

 12,149.90  7,125.54 

23

24

25

26

27

28

Revenue from Opera�ons

Other Income

Total Income

Expenses

Cost of Material Consumed

Change in Inventories of work in progress and finished goods

Employee Benefit Expenses

Finance Costs

Deprecia�on and Amor�za�on Expenses

Other Expenses

 7,257.36  3,631.42 

 (1,216.92)  (1,729.72)

 1,611.63  1,403.02 

 116.11  189.82 

 151.69  116.89 

 2,392.54  2,163.42 

Total expenses  10,312.41  2,163.42 

Profit/(Loss) before Excep�onal and Extraordinary Item and Tax  1,837.49  1,350.69 

Excep�onal Item --

Profit/(Loss) before Extraordinary Item and Tax  1,837.49  1,350.69 

Extraordinary Item --

 1,837.49  1,350.69 Profit/(Loss) before Tax

Tax Expenses   

    - Current Tax   

    - Deferred Tax   

    - Excess/Short Provision Wri�en back/off

 480.00  
4.16  

-   

 352.00  
2.36  
(8.39)

Profit/(Loss) a�er Tax  1,353.33  1,004.72 

Earnings Per Share (Face Value per Share Rs.10 each)           

    -Basic (In Rs)           

    -Diluted (In Rs)
29

29

7.62

7.62

7.61

7.61
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Pratham EPC Projects Limited
(CIN:  L45200GJ2014PLC081119)
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

1. COMPANY INFORMATION

“Pratham EPC Projects Private Limited” was originally incorporated on 27th day of October, 2014 under the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 as a private limited company with the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat. Therea�er our Company 

acquired Business of Partnership Firm namely “Pratham Construc�on” vide passing Special Resolu�on at an Extra 

Ordinary General Mee�ng of members of the Company held on 1st March, 2016 by way of issue of Equity shares in lieu of 

considera�on amount. Subsequently, our Company was converted into a Public Limited Company pursuant to shareholders 

resolu�on passed at Extra-ordinary General Mee�ng of our Company held on 21st July, 2023 and the name of our Company 

was changed to “Pratham EPC Projects Limited”. A fresh Cer�ficate of Incorpora�on consequent upon Conversion from 

Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company dated 28th July, 2023 was issued by the Registrar of Companies, 

Ahmedabad. The Company was listed with NSE SME on 18th March, 2024. The Corporate Iden�fica�on Number of our 

Company is L45200GJ2014PLC081119.

The Company is engaged in the business of Pipeline Construc�on of Oil & Gas and Water Engineering Procurement 

Construc�on

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a   Basis of Prepara�on

The standalone financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accoun�ng Principles 

(GAAP) under the historical cost conven�on on the accrual basis. GAAP comprises mandatory accoun�ng standards as 

prescribed under sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extend no�fied. Accoun�ng policies have been consistently applied 

except where a newly issued accoun�ng standard is ini�ally adopted or a revision to an exis�ng accoun�ng standard 

requires a change in the accoun�ng policy hitherto in use except where specifically stated hereunder.

b    Use of Es�mates

The prepara�on of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accoun�ng principles (GAAP) requires 

management to make es�mates and assump�ons that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabili�es and disclosure 

of con�ngent liabili�es as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 

the reported period. Actual results could differ from these es�mates. Any revision to accoun�ng es�mates is recognized 

prospec�vely in current and future periods

c   Accoun�ng Assump�ons

(i) Going Concern: The enterprise is normally viewed as a going concern, that is, as con�nuing in opera�on for the 

foreseeable future. It is assumed that the enterprise has neither the inten�on nor the necessity of liquida�on or of 

curtailing materially the scale of the opera�ons

(ii) Consistency:   It is assumed that accoun�ng policies are consistent from one period to another. 

(iii) Accrual: Revenues and costs are accrued, that is, recognized as they are earned or incurred (and not as money is 

received or paid) and recorded in the standalone financial statements of the periods to which they relate. 

(The considera�ons affec�ng the process of matching costs with revenues under the accrual assump�on are not dealt 

with in this Statement.)

80



d   Property, Plant and Equipment

Tangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated deprecia�on and impairment, if any. Direct costs are capitalized 

un�lsuch assets are ready for use. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components having 

different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate items. Borrowing costs incurred during the period of 

construc�on is capitalized as part of cost of qualifying asset. The residual values, useful lives and method of deprecia�on of 

property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospec�vely, if appropriate.

Capital work in progress comprises the cost of fixed assetsthat are not yet ready for their intended use at the repor�ng date.

e   Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprising of so�ware costs is included in the balance sheet as intangible assets when it is probable that 

associated future economic benefits would flow to the Company. In this case they are measured ini�ally at purchase cost 

and then amor�zed on a wri�en down value method over their es�mated useful lives. All other costs on intangible assets 

including so�ware are expensed in the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.

f   Deprecia�on and amor�za�on

Deprecia�on has been charged on cost of fixed assets, adop�ng the following methods / rates: a. Deprecia�on is calculated 

using Straight Line Method (SLM) to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their es�mated useful lives 

prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Deprecia�on is commenced from the dates the assets are available for their intended use and are spread over their 

es�mated useful economic lives. The es�mated useful lives of assets, residual values and deprecia�on method are 

reviewed regularly and are revised when necessary.

The company has taken over the business of M/s Pratham Construc�on in 2015-16, a partnership firm, which was being 

carried on by the directors respec�vely, who are also directors in the company. The assets taken from the said firms has 

been recorded at the book value of which was reflected in the books of M/s Pratham Construc�on and are depreciated 

over the remaining useful life of the asset.

If the cost of a part of the asset is significant to the total cost of the asset and useful life of that part is different from the 

useful life of the remaining asset, useful life of that significant part is determined separately for deprecia�on. For other 

assets acquired / sold during the year pro-rata charge has been made from the date of first use or �ll the date of sale.

In accordance with Accoun�ng Standard AS-26, Intangible Assets comprising of Computer So�ware are valued at cost less 

accumulated amor�za�on. Computer so�ware is amor�zed over the useful life of the so�ware subject to maximum useful 

life of 10 years as prescribed under Accoun�ng Standard - 26 “Intangible Asset”.
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Type of Assets Useful Life

Buildings 30 Years

Plant and Equipment 15 Years

Construc�on Equipment 12 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years

Vehicles 8 Years

Office equipment 5 Years

Computers 3 Years

g   Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviewsthe carrying value of its property, plant and equipment and intangible 
assets to determine whether there is any indica�on that the carrying value of those assets may not be recoverable through 
con�nuing use. If any such indica�on exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order to determine the 
extent of impairment loss, if any. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, 
the Company es�mates the recoverable amount of the cash genera�ng unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable 
amount is the higher of assets net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the es�mated future cash flows 
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the �me 
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the es�mates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 
Since the company’s net selling price of the cash genera�ng unit to which the asset belongs based on the valua�on report 
is higher than the recoverable amount, the company has not arrived at the value in use and has complied with the 
requirement of AS-28 based on the valua�on of independent valuer.

An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset 
(or cash genera�ng unit) is increased to the revised es�mate of itsrecoverable amountso that the increased carrying 
value does not exceed the carrying value that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for 
the asset (or cash genera�ng unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit 
and loss immediately.

h   Investment

Long-term investments and current maturi�es of long-term investments are stated at cost, less provision for other than 
temporary diminu�on in value. Current investments, except for current maturi�es of long-term investments, comprising 
investments in mutual funds, government securi�es and bonds are stated at the lower of cost and fair value.

I   Inventories

(i) Construc�on Materials: Construc�on materials are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, on the basis of 
weighted average method a�er providing for obsolescence and otherlosses, where considered necessary. Cost of inventory 
comprises all costs of purchase, du�es, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authori�es) and all other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present loca�on and condi�on.

(ii) Work-in-Progress: The recogni�on of expenses in the statement of Profit and Loss Statement on the basis of Percentage 
of Comple�on method under which the contract cost incurred in reaching the stage of comple�on is matched with the 
percentage of work completed on the basis of the work cer�fied by the surveyor/engineer. The cost incurred towards future 
contract ac�vity and for the por�on of work uncer�fied is classified under Project Work-in-progress. Work-in-progress 
represents cost incurred directly in respect of construc�on ac�vity and indirect construc�on cost to the extent to which 
the expenditure is related to the future contract ac�vity or incidental thereto and is valued at lower of cost or net realizable 
value.

jCash and cash equivalents
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j   Cash and cash equivalents

    Cash and Bank Balances consist of:

a. Cash and Cash Equivalent which includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term deposits 

    which are readily conver�ble into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and have 

    original maturi�es of less than one year. These balances with banks are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

b. Other Bank Balances which includes balances and deposits with Banks that are restricted for withdrawal and usage.

k   Cash Flow Statement

     Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted 

    for the effects of transac�ons of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. 

    The cash flows from opera�ng, inves�ng and financing ac�vi�es of the Company are segregated based on the available 

    informa�on.

l   Revenue recogni�on

    The revenues are recognized to the extent it is probable that the amount is measured reliably and that it is probable of 

    inflow of resources. The revenue has been booked based on the work cer�fied. The revenues are booked on comple�on 

    of stages and accordingly, on achieving of the milestone, the revenues have been booked. The progress / work cer�fied is 

    measured on the basis of the cer�ficate issued by the Chartered Engineer/Surveyor. Amounts received before the related 

    work is performed are disclosed in the Balance Sheet as contract liability and termed as “Advances from customer”. An 

    expected loss on the contract is recognized as an expense immediately. Cost incurred towards future contract ac�vity is 

    classified as project work in progress.

m   Employee Benefits

Short Term

i)    Short Term: Short Term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount expected to be 

       paid over the period of services rendered by the employees to the company.

Long Term

Defined Benefits Plan:   For defined benefit re�rement schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the 

Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valua�on being carried out at each year-end balance sheet date. 

Re-measurement gains and losses of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized immediately in the profit and 

loss account. The service cost and net interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized as an expense 

within employee costs. The Company has not made any investment to meet the liability of gratuity payments �ll the period 

ended 30th September, 2023. The re�rement benefit obliga�ons recognized in the balance sheet represents the present 

value of the defined benefit obliga�ons arrived at based on the report of actuary.

Defined Contribu�on Plans: Contribu�ons under defined contribu�on plans like provident fund, Employee State Insurance 

Scheme are recognized as expense for the period in which the employee has rendered service. Payments made to state 

managed re�rement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribu�on schemes where the Company’s 

obliga�ons under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribu�on re�rement benefit scheme.

 Leave Encashment:   The employees of the Company are en�tled for leave encashment on yearly basis. The amount 

accumulated during the year is paid in the next year.
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n   Borrowing Cost

   Interest and other costs in connec�on with the borrowing of the funds to the extent related/a�ributed to the 

      acquisi�on/construc�on of qualifying fixed assets are capitalized as a part of the cost of such asset up-to the date when 

      such assets are ready for its intended use and other borrowing costs are charged to statement of Profit & Loss.

o   Foreign currency transac�ons

   Transac�ons denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 

      transac�on and are presented in Indian Rupees which is the func�onal currency of the company for presenta�on of its 

      financial statement. All exchange differences arising on se�lement and conversion on foreign currency transac�on are 

     included in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In respect of transac�ons covered by forward exchange contracts, the 

    difference between the forward rate and the exchange rate at the date of transac�on is recognized as income or 

       expense at the �me of maturity date.

p    Taxa�on

       Income tax expense is accounted for in accordance with AS 22- “Accoun�ng for Taxes on Income” prescribed under the 

       Companies (Accoun�ng Standard) Rules, 2006 which includes current tax and deferred taxes.

       Current taxes reflect the impact of tax on income of the previous year as defined under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as 

       per applicable rates.

       Deferred taxes reflect the impact of Current year �ming differences between taxable income and accoun�ng income for 

      the year and reversal of �ming differences of earlier yearsif any. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent 

     that there isreasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred 

     tax asset will be recognized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed for their appropriateness of their respec�ve carrying 

       values at each repor�ng date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabili�es have been offset wherever the company 

      has legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabili�es and where deferred tax assets 

        and deferred tax liabili�es relate to income taxes levied by the same taxa�on authority. 

q    Segment accoun�ng

      The Company is primarily engaged in a single segment. Considering the provisions of Accoun�ng Standard 17, the 

      Company do not have any reportable segments.

r     Earnings Per Shares

       Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed in accordance with Accoun�ng Standard-20. Basic earnings pershare 

      is calculated by dividing the net profit orloss a�er tax for the year a�ributable to equity shareholders by the weighted 

       average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share are computed using the 

    weighted average number of equity shares and dilu�ve poten�al equity shares outstanding during the year, except 

       where the results are an�-dilu�ve.

s     Provisions, Con�ngent liabili�es and Con�ngent assets

     A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal obliga�on that is reasonably 

       es�mate, and it is probable that an ou�low of economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on. Provisions are 

     determined by the best es�mate of the ou�low of economic benefits required to se�le the obliga�on at the repor�ng 

     date. Where no reliable es�mate can be made, a disclosure is made as con�ngent liability. A disclosure for con�ngent 

      liability is also made when there is a possible obliga�on or a present obliga�on that may, but probably will not, require 

      an ou�low of resources. Where there is a possible obliga�on or a present obliga�on in respect of which the likelihood 

     of ou�low of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. Con�ngent assets are neither recognized nor 

       disclosed. 84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93

ADMIN
Line



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



Pra�k M Vekariya
Chairmen &

Nayan M Pansuriya 
Whole Time

CA Saurabh Jain
Partner

101



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of 

Pratham EPC Projects Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Pratham EPC Projects Limited (Formerly known as 

Pratham EPC Projects Private Limited) (hereina�er referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its Subsidiaries (the Holding 

Company and its Subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 

31st March, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year 

then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accoun�ng policies and 

other explanatory informa�on (hereina�er referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us and based on the 

considera�on of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial informa�on of the 

subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2013 

(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accoun�ng Standards (“ASs”) 

prescribed under Sec�on 133 of the Act read with Rules framed thereunder and other accoun�ng principles generally 

accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2025, their consolidated profit and their 

consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng (“SAs”) 

specified under Sec�on 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibili�es under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor's 

Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” sec�on of our report. We are independent of the 

Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”), together with 

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the 

Act and the Rules framed thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these 

requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence 

obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 

on the consolidated financial statements.

V C A N & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Pratham EPC Projects Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financials Statement for Year ended on 31st March, 2025
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Informa�on other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the prepara�on of the other informa�on. The other informa�on 

comprises the informa�on included in the Holding Company's Annual Report but does not include the Consolidated Financial 

Statements and our Auditor's Report thereon. The other informa�on was made available to us on the date of this Auditor's 

Report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express any form 

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connec�on with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informa�on, and 

in doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or 

our knowledge obtained in the auditor otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 

performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informa�on, we are required to report that fact. 

When we read the other informa�on, and if we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are required to 

communicate the ma�er to those charged with governance for appropriate compliance of the same.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibili�es and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the ma�ers stated in Sec�on 134 (5) of the Act with respect to 

the prepara�on and presenta�on of these Consolidated Financial Statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that 

give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial posi�on, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash 

flows of the Group in accordance with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, including the Accoun�ng 

Standards (“ASs”) specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act read with Rules framed thereunder. The respec�ve Board of 

Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act; for safeguarding of the assets of the Group; and for preven�ng and detec�ng 

frauds and other irregulari�es; selec�on and applica�on of appropriate accoun�ng policies; making judgments and 

es�mates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, relevant to 

the prepara�on and presenta�on of the consolidated financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which

V C A N & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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have been used for the purpose of prepara�on of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the 

Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respec�ve Board of Directors of the companies included in the 

Group are also responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 

ma�ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless management either intends to 

liquidate the Group or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so. 

Those respec�ve Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial

 repor�ng process of their respec�ve companies.

Auditor's Responsibili�es for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor's Report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skep�cism 

throughout the audit. We also:

•   Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

     error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

     appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is 

     higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, 

     or the override of internal control.

•   Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

      in the circumstances. Under Sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 

      the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements in 

      place and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls.

•    Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates and related 

      disclosures made by management.

V C A N & Co.
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•  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng in prepara�on of 

    consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 

     related to events or condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on of the Group's ability to con�nue as a going concern. 

      If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our Auditor's Report to the related 

    disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

     conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Auditor's Report. However, future events or 

      condi�ons may cause the Group to cease to con�nue as a going concern.

•  Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the 

      disclosures, and whether the consolidated   financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in a 

      manner that achieves fair presenta�on.

•   Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial informa�on of the en��es or business ac�vi�es within

     the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We 

    are responsible for the direc�on, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such en��es 

   included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other en��es 

      included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain 

   responsible for the direc�on, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely 

      responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other en��es included in the 

consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned 

scope and �ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

iden�fy during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that may reasonably be thought 

to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those ma�ers that were of most 

significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 and are 

therefore the key audit ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our Auditor's Report unless law or regula�on precludes public 

disclosure about the ma�er or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a ma�er should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 

public interest benefits of such communica�on.

V C A N & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Pratham EPC Projects Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financials Statement for Year ended on 31st March, 2025

105



Other Ma�ers

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements includes the audited financial statements and other financial 

informa�on of its subsidiaries, Pratham Interna�onal LLC (OPC incorporated in Dubai, UAE) & M/s. Pipeflow Integrity India 

Private Limited (�ll 31st January ,2025).

The Financial Statements of Pratham Interna�onal LLC-OPC & Pipeflow Integrity Private Limited have been audited by other

auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management.

Our opinion on the consolidated annual financial results, in so far as it relates amounts and disclosures included in respect 

of Pratham Interna�onal LLC (OPC incorporated in Dubai, UAE) & M/s. Pipeflow Integrity India Private Limited 

(�ll 31st January ,2025), and our report in terms of sub-sec�ons (3) of Sec�on 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the 

aforesaid Subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of such other auditors and the procedures performed by us as stated 

under Auditor's Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results in above paragraph.

The details of total assets, total revenues, net profit and net cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2025 are given below,

which have been considered in the consolidated financial statements of the Group:

Net Cash Inflow
F.Y. 2024 – 25

Name of
Subsidiaries

Total Assets as
onMarch

31st, 2025

Total Revenue
For the

F.Y. 2024-25

Net Profit /
(Loss) For the
F.Y. 2024- 25

453.58
Pratham
Interna�onal
LLC-OPC

690.52 69.00 34.85

M/s. Pipeflow
Integrity India
Private Limited
(�ll 31st January,
2025)

- 42.91 (36.64) (13.73)

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, 

is not modified in respect of the above ma�ers with respect to our reliance on the work done and the report of the other 

auditors.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.   As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in 

     terms of sub-sec�on (11) of Sec�on 143 of the Act., based on our audit and on considera�on of report of the other 

     auditors on separate financial statements and other financial informa�on of the subsidiaries, incorporated in India and 

     outside India, as noted in “Other Ma�er” paragraph, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the ma�ers specified in 

     paragraph 3 of clause(xxi) of the Order.

2.   As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the considera�on of reports of the other auditors on 

     separate financial statements and the other financial informa�on of subsidiaries, as noted in the “Other ma�er” 

     paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)   We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

      necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements. 

b)    In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law rela�ng to prepara�on of the aforesaid consolidated financial 

       statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examina�on of those books and the reports of the other 

       auditors.

c)     The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow 

       Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of 

       prepara�on of the consolidated financial statements.

d)     In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accoun�ng Standards specified under 

        Sec�on 133 of the Act and Rules framed thereunder. 

e)     On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st March, 2025 

        taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its 

        subsidiaries, none of the directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 

        from being appointed as a director in terms of Sec�on 164(2) of the Act.

f)      With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and the 

        opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B“ which is based on the Auditors' 

        Reports of the Holding Company and its Subsidiaries incorporated in India outside India. Our report expresses an 

        unmodified opinion on the adequacy and opera�ng effec�veness of internal financial controls with reference to 

        c o n s o l i d a t e d  fi n a n c i a l  s t a t e m e n t s  o f  t h o s e  C o m p a n i e s .  
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g)    In our opinion and based on the considera�on of reports of other statutory auditors of the subsidiaries, incorporated in 

      India and outside India, the managerial remunera�on for the year ended 31st March, 2025 has been paid / provided by 

      the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India and outside India to their directors in accordance with the 

      provisions of Sec�on 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

h)    With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 

      (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from �me to �me, in our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and 

      according to the explana�ons given to us and based on the considera�on of the reports of the other auditors on the 

      financial statements of the subsidiaries as noted in other ma�ers paragraph:

I.         The Group does not have any pending li�ga�ons which would impact its financial posi�on;

ii.        The Group did not have any long-term contracts including deriva�ve contracts for which there were any material 

          foreseeable losses;

iii.       There was no amount which was required to be transferred, to the Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund by the 

          Holding Company and its subsidiaries.

iv. (a) The respec�ve management of the Holding Company and its Subsidiaries whose financial statements have been audited 

         under the Act have represented to us and the other auditor of such Subsidiaries that, to the best of its knowledge and 

         belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 

       sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its Subsidiaries to or in any other persons or en��es, including 

    foreign en��es (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise, that the 

       Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner 

         whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ul�mate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 

          behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries;

(b)   The respec�ve management of the Holding Company and its Subsidiaries whose financial statements have been

      audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditor of such Subsidiaries that, to the best of its 

       knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or its Subsidiaries from any person or 

          en�ty, including foreign en��es (“Funding Par�es”), with the understanding, whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise, 

      that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lender invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any 

         manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ul�mate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security 

          or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries; and
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(c)   Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances performed 

      by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India and outside 

        India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our no�ce that has caused us to 

        believe that the representa�ons under sub-clauses (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain 

        any material misstatement.

v.      During the year under review, the Holding Company and its Subsidiaries have not declared or paid any dividend. Hence, 

        provisions of sec�on 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

vi.     The Holding Company, in respect of financial year commencing on or a�er the 1st April, 2023, has used such accoun�ng 

        so�ware for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same 

       has been operated throughout the year for all transac�ons recorded in the so�ware and the audit trail feature has not 

     been tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for 

        record reten�on.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, repor�ng under Rule 11(g) 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preserva�on of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record 

reten�on is not applicable for the financial year ended March 2025.

For, V C A N & Co Chartered Accountants  

FRN: 125172W
CA Saurabh Jain
Partner
Membership No. 175015
UDIN: 
Place: Ahmedabad
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report 

[Referred to in Paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” sec�on of the Independent 

Auditor's Report of even date to the Members of Pratham EPC Projects Limited (Formerly known as Pratham EPC Projects 

Private Limited) on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025]

In terms of the informa�on and explana�ons sought by us and given by the Holding Company and the books of account and 

records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(xxi) In terms of the informa�on and explana�ons sought by us and given by the Holding Company and the books of account 

and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and on the considera�on of report of the other auditors on 

separate financial statements and the other financial informa�on of the subsidiaries, incorporated in India and outside India 

and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state the following qualifica�ons or adverse remarks by the respec�ve 

auditors in the Companies (Auditors Report) Order (“CARO” / “Order”) Reports of the companies included in the 

consolidated financial statements are:

Sr 
No

Name of
the 

Company

CIN Nature
of

Rela�onship

Clause Number of
CARO report with

qualifica�on or
adverse remarks

1.

1.

Pratham Interna�onal
LLC-OPC  

Pipeflow Integrity 
India Private Limited

_

U60300GJ2020P
Tc113952

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Clause 3 (vii a)

Clause 3 (vii a)

For, V C A N & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 125172W

CA Saurabh Jain
Partner
Membership No. 175015
UDIN: 
Place: Ahmedabad
Date:

V C A N & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Pratham EPC Projects Limited
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report 

[Referred to in Paragraph 2 (f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” sec�on of the Independent

 Auditor's Report of even date to the Members of Pratham EPC Projects Limited (Formerly known as Pratham EPC Projects 

Private Limited) on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements under Clause (i) of 

sub-sec�on 3 of Sec�on 143 of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of Pratham EPC 

Projects Limited (Formerly known as Pratham EPC Projects Private Limited) ("the Holding Company") and its Subsidiaries 

(the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) in conjunc�on with our audit of the 

consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company as of and for the year ended 31st March, 2025.

Management's Responsibili�es for Internal Financial Controls

The respec�ve Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, which are incorporated in India and outside 

India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Financial Controls based on the Internal Control over 

financial repor�ng criteria established by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries considering the essen�al 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng 

issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India  (“the ICAI”). These responsibili�es include the design, 

implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the 

orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

preven�on and detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, and the �mely 

prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibili�es

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls over financial repor�ng with 

reference to the consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 

Audi�ng, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Sec�on 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 

of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated 

Financial Statement and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note required that we comply with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether internal financial 

controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were established and maintained and if such 

controls operated effec�vely in all material respects.

V C A N & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Pratham EPC Projects Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financials Statement for Year ended on 31st March, 2025
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

with reference to financial statements and their opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit of internal financial controls with 

reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 

financial repor�ng, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tes�ng and evalua�ng the design and opera�ng 

effec�veness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of 

their reports referred to in the “Other Ma�ers” paragraph, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng with reference to these 

Consolidated Financial Statements

A Company's Internal Financial Control over financial repor�ng with reference to these consolidated financial statements 

is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng and the prepara�on 

of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles. 

A Company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng with reference to these consolidated financial statements 

includes those policies and procedures that: 

(1)    pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transac�ons and 

        disposi�ons of the assets of the Group.

(2)   provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are recorded as necessary to permit prepara�on of consolidated 

        financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles and that receipts and expenditures of 

        the Group are being made only in accordance with authoriza�ons of management and directors of the Group. and 

(3)    provide reasonable assurance regarding preven�on or �mely detec�on of unauthorized acquisi�on, use, or disposi�on 

        of the Group's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent limita�ons of internal financial controls with reference to these Consolidated 

Financial Statements

V C A N & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Pratham EPC Projects Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financials Statement for Year ended on 31st March, 2025
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Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal Financial Controls over financial repor�ng with reference to these 

Consolidated Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projec�ons of any evalua�on of the 

internal financial controls over financial repor�ng with reference to these consolidated financial statements to future 

periods are subject to the risk that the internal financials control over financial repor�ng with reference to these 

consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us and based on the 

considera�on of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the “Other Ma�ers” paragraph, the Holding Company 

and its subsidiaries, which are incorporated in India and outside India, in all material respects, have adequate internal 

financial controls over financial repor�ng with reference to these consolidated financial statements and such internal 

financial controls over financial repor�ng with reference to these consolidated financial statements were opera�ng 

effec�vely as at 31st March, 2025 based on the criteria for internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by 

the Group considering the essen�al components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the ICAI.

Other Ma�ers

Our aforesaid report under Sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and opera�ng effec�veness of the internal financial 

control with reference to consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates to subsidiary which is company 

incorporated in India and outside India, is based on the corresponding standalone reports of the auditors, as applicable, 

of such companies. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this ma�er.

For, V C A N & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 125172W

CA Saurabh Jain
Partner
Membership No. 175015
UDIN: 
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 

V C A N & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Pratham EPC Projects Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financials Statement for Year ended on 31st March, 2025
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 Pratham EPC Projects Limited
(CIN:  L45200GJ2014PLC081119)

 Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

1   COMPANY INFORMATION

     “Pratham EPC Projects Private Limited” was originally incorporated on 27th day of October, 2014 under the provisions of 

    the Companies Act, 2013 as a private limited company with the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat. Therea�er our 

      Company acquired Business of Partnership Firm namely “Pratham Construc�on” vide passing Special Resolu�on at an 

       Extra Ordinary General Mee�ng of members of the Company held on 1st March, 2016 by way of issue of Equity shares 

       in lieu of considera�on amount. Subsequently, our Company was converted into a Public Limited Company pursuant to 

     shareholders resolu�on passed at Extra-ordinary General Mee�ng of our Company held on 21st July, 2023 and the 

     name of our Company was changed to “Pratham EPC Projects Limited” herein a�er referred to as “The Company”. 

    A fresh Cer�ficate of Incorpora�on consequent upon Conversion from Private Limited Company to Public Limited 

      Company dated 28th July, 2023 was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad. The Company was listed with 

       NSE SME on 18th March, 2024. The Corporate Iden�fica�on Number of our Company is L45200GJ2014PLC081119.

2    SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a      Basis of Prepara�on

The Consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accoun�ng 

Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost conven�on on the accrual basis. GAAP comprises mandatory accoun�ng 

standards as prescribed under sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014 and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extend no�fied. Accoun�ng policies have been 

consistently applied except where a newly issued accoun�ng standard is ini�ally adopted or a revision to an exis�ng 

accoun�ng standard requires a change in the accoun�ng policy hitherto in use except where specifically stated 

hereunder.

     Group Informa�on: The Holding Company had an associate company, namely, M/s Pipeflow Integrity India Private 

        Limited �ll May 25, 2023. It became subsidiary of holding company with effect from May 26, 2023 with a shareholding 

        of 52%.

        Principles of Consolida�on: 

I)      The financial statements of the Subsidiary Company used in the consolida�on are drawn upto the same repor�ng date 

         as of the Holding Company i.e. year ended March 31, 2025.

ii)     The financial statements of the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company have been combined on a line-by-line 

      basis by adding together like items of assets, liabili�es, income and expenses. The inter-company balances and 

         inter-company transac�ons and unrealized profits, if any have been fully eliminated. 

iii)     Investments in Associate Company have been accounted for by using the equity method, whereby an investment is 

         ini�ally recorded at cost and the carrying amount is adjusted therea�er for post-acquisi�on change in the Group's 

      share of net assets of the Associate. The carrying amount of investment in Associate Companies is reduced to 

         recognize any decline which is other than temporary in nature and such determina�on of decline in value, if any, is 

          made for each investment individually. The unrealized profits / losses on transac�ons with Associate Companies are 

          eliminated by adjus�ng the carrying amount of investments.  
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 iv)     The financial statements of the Subsidiary Company has been combined by using line- by-line basis and accordingly, 

          minority’s share of each of Net assets is reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

 v)     Minority interests have been iden�fied as the net assets of the consolidated subsidiaries and is presented in the 

       consolidated balance sheet separately. Minority interests in the net assets consist of the minori�es’ share of 

          movements in equity since the date the Holding-subsidiary rela�onship came in existence. 

vi)     Capital Reserve is recognized as a Reserve in the Consolidated Financial Statement.

b       Use of Es�mates

     The prepara�on of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accoun�ng principles (GAAP) 

       requires management to make es�mates and assump�ons that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabili�es 

       and disclosure of con�ngent liabili�es as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues 

         and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from these es�mates. Any revision to accoun�ng 

         es�mates is recognized prospec�vely in current and future periods.

c       Accoun�ng Assump�ons

(I)    Going Concern: The enterprise is normally viewed as a going concern, that is, as con�nuing in opera�on for the 

         foreseeable future. It is assumed that the enterprise has neither the inten�on nor the necessity of liquida�on or of 

         curtailing materially the scale of the opera�ons.

(ii)    Consistency:   It is assumed that accoun�ng policies are consistent from one period to another.

(iii)   Accrual: Revenues and costs are accrued, that is, recognized as they are earned or incurred (and not as money is 

         received or paid) and recorded in the Consolidated financial statements of the periodsto which they relate. (The 

         considera�ons affec�ng the process of matching costs with revenues under the accrual assump�on are not dealt 

         with in this Statement).

d      Property, Plant and Equipment

       Tangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated deprecia�on and impairment, if any. Direct costs are capitalized 

      un�l such assets are ready for use. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components 

        having different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate items. Borrowing costs incurred during 

         the period of construc�on is capitalized as part of cost of qualifying asset. The residual values, useful lives and method 

        of deprecia�on of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospec�vely, if 

         appropriate.

        Capital work in progress comprises the cost of fixed assetsthat are not yet ready for their intended use at the 

        repor�ng date.
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e    Intangible assets

     Intangible assets comprising of so�ware costs is included in the balance sheet as intangible assets when it is probable 

      hat associated future economic benefits would flow to the Company. In this case they are measured ini�ally at purchase 

      cost and then amor�zed on a wri�en down value method over their es�mated useful lives. All other costs on intangible 

      assets including so�ware are expensed in the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.

f    Deprecia�on and amor�za�on

      Deprecia�on is commenced from the dates the assets are available for their intended use and are spread over their 

      es�mated useful economic lives. The es�mated useful lives of assets, residual values and deprecia�on method are 

      reviewed regularly and are revised when necessary.  

      The company has taken over the business of M/s Pratham Construc�on in 2015-16, a partnership firm, which was being 

      carried on by the directors respec�vely, who are also directors in the company. The assets taken from the said firms has 

      been recorded at the book value of which was reflected in the books of M/s Pratham Construc�on and are depreciated 

      over the remaining useful life of the asset.

      If the cost of a part of the asset is significant to the total cost of the asset and useful life of that part is different from the 

      useful life of the remaining asset, useful life of that significant part is determined separately for deprecia�on. For other 

      assets acquired /sold during the year pro-rata charge has been made from the date of first use or �ll the date of sale.

      In accordance with Accoun�ng Standard AS-26, Intangible Assets comprising of Computer So�ware are valued at cost 

      less accumulated amor�za�on. Computer so�ware is amor�zed over the useful life of the so�ware subject to maximum 

      useful life of 10 years as prescribed under Accoun�ng Standard - 26 “Intangible Asset”.

      Deprecia�on is calculated using Straight Line Method (SLM) to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their 

      es�mated useful lives prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 .

Type of Assets Useful Life

Buildings 30 Years

Plant and Equipment 15 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years

Vehicles 8 Years

Office equipment 5 Years

Computers 3 Years

Construc�on Equipment 12 Years
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g    Impairment of assets

      At each balance sheet date, the Company reviewsthe carrying value of its property, plant and equipment and intangible 

    assets to determine whether there is any indica�on that the carrying value of those assets may not be recoverable 

    through con�nuing use. If any such indica�on exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order to 

     determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent 

    from other assets, the Company es�mates the recoverable amount of the cash genera�ng unit to which the asset 

     belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of assets net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 

     es�mated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 

     market assessments of the �me value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the es�mates of future 

      cash flows have not been adjusted. Since the company’s net selling price of the cash genera�ng unit to which the asset 

      belongs based on the valua�on report is higher than the recoverable amount, the company has not arrived at the value 

      in use and has complied with the requirement of AS-28 based on the valua�on of independent valuer.

    An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and when the carrying value of an asset 

    exceeds its recoverable amount. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset 

     (or cash genera�ng unit) is increased to the revised es�mate of itsrecoverable amountso that the increased carrying 

      value does not exceed the carrying value that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized 

      for the asset (or cash genera�ng unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of 

      profit and loss immediately.

h    Investment

      Long-term investments and current maturi�es of long-term investments are stated at cost, less provision for other than 

      temporary diminu�on in value. Current investments, except for current maturi�es of long-term investments, comprising 

      investments in mutual funds, government securi�es and bonds are stated at the lower of cost and fair value.

I     Inventories

(i)  Construc�on Materials: Construc�on materials are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, on the basis of 

    weighted average method a�er providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary. Cost of 

       inventory comprises all costs of purchase, du�es, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authori�es) 

       and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present loca�on and condi�on.

(ii)  Work-in-Progress: The recogni�on of expenses in the statement of Profit and Loss Statement on the basis of Percentage 

      of Comple�on method under which the contract cost incurred in reaching the stage of comple�on is matched with the 

     percentage of work completed on the basis of the work cer�fied by the surveyor/engineer. The cost incurred towards 

   future contract ac�vity and for the por�on of work uncer�fied is classified under Project Work-in-progress. 

     Work-in-progress represents cost incurred directly in respect of construc�on ac�vity and indirect construc�on cost to 

       the extent to which the expenditure is related to the future contract ac�vity or incidental thereto and is valued at lower 

       of cost or net realizable value.
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The valua�on for inventories is as follows;

Classifica�on Valua�on Policy

Finished Goods At lower of cost or net realizable value.    

Raw Material At lower of cost or net realizable value.    

WIP At Cost

Consumables At Cost

j    Cash and cash equivalents

      Cash and Bank Balances consist of:

(i)  Cash and Cash Equivalent which includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term deposits 
      which are readily conver�ble into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and have 
      original maturi�es of less than one year. These balances with banks are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

(ii) Other Bank Balances which includes balances and deposits with Banks that are restricted for withdrawal and usage.

k    Revenue recogni�on

      The revenues are recognized to the extent it is probable that the amount is measured reliably and that it is probable of 
      inflow of resources. The revenue has been booked based on the work cer�fied. The revenues are booked on comple�on 
      of stages and accordingly, on achieving of the milestone, the revenues have been booked. The progress / work cer�fied 
    is measured on the basis of the cer�ficate issued by the Chartered Engineer/Surveyor. Amounts received before the 
   related work is performed are disclosed in the Balance Sheet as contract liability and termed as “Advances from 
    customer”. An expected loss on the contract is recognized as an expense immediately. Cost incurred towards future 
      contract ac�vity is classified as project work in progress.

l     Employee Benefits

      Short Term

       Short Term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount expected to be paid over the 
       period of services rendered by the employees to the company.

     Long Term

    Defined Benefits Plan:   For defined benefit re�rement schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the 
  Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valua�on being carried out at each year-end balance sheet date. 
   Re-measurement gains and losses of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized immediately in the profit 
   and loss account. The service cost and net interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized as an 
    expense within employee costs. The Company has not made any investment to meet the liability of gratuity payments 
     �ll the period ended 30th September, 2023. The re�rement benefit obliga�ons recognized in the balance sheet represents 
     the present value of the defined benefit obliga�ons arrived at based on the report of actuary.

     Defined Contribu�on Plans: Contribu�ons under defined contribu�on plans like provident fund, Employee State Insurance 
    Scheme are recognized as expense for the period in which the employee has rendered service. Payments made to state 
    managed re�rement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribu�on schemes where the Company’s 
     obliga�ons under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribu�on re�rement benefit scheme.

       Leave Encashment:   The employees of the Company are en�tled for leave encashment on yearly basis. The amount 
       accumulated during the year is paid in the next year.
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       Leave Encashment:   The employees of the Company are en�tled for leave encashment on yearly basis. The amount 
       accumulated during the year is paid in the next year.

m    Borrowing Cost

    Interest and other costs in connec�on with the borrowing of the funds to the extent related/a�ributed to the 

      acquisi�on/construc�on of qualifying fixed assets are capitalized as a part of the cost of such asset up-to the date 

        when such assets are ready for its intended use and other borrowing costs are charged to statement of Profit & Loss.

n    Foreign currency transac�ons

    Transac�ons denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 

      transac�on and are presented in Indian Rupees which is the func�onal currency of the company for presenta�on of 

      its financial statement. All exchange differences arising on se�lement and conversion on foreign currency transac�on 

     are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In respect of transac�ons covered by forward exchange contracts, 

      the difference between the forward rate and the exchange rate at the date of transac�on is recognized as income or 

      expense at the �me of maturity date.

o    Taxa�on

       Income tax expense is accounted for in accordance with AS 22- “Accoun�ng for Taxes on Income” prescribed under the 

       Companies (Accoun�ng Standard) Rules, 2006 which includes current tax and deferred taxes. 

       Current taxes reflect the impact of tax on income of the previous year as defined under the Income Tax Act, 

       1961 as per applicable rates.

       Deferred taxes reflect the impact of Current year �ming differences between taxable income and accoun�ng income 

      for the year and reversal of �ming differences of earlier yearsif any. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the 

     extent that there isreasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such 

      deferred tax asset will be recognized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed for their appropriateness of their respec�ve 

       carrying values at each repor�ng date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabili�es have been offset wherever the 

      company has legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabili�es and where deferred 

       tax assets and deferred tax liabili�es relate to income taxes levied by the same taxa�on authority. 

p    Segment Repor�ng

      The Company is primarily engaged in a single segment. Considering the provisions of Accoun�ng Standard 17, the 

      Company do not have any reportable segments.

q    Earnings Per Shares

       Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed in accordance with Accoun�ng Standard-20. Basic earnings pershare 

      is calculated by dividing the net profit orloss a�er tax for the year a�ributable to equity shareholders by the weighted 

       average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share are computed using the 

    weighted average number of equity shares and dilu�ve poten�al equity shares outstanding during the year, except 

       where the results are an�-dilu�ve.
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       Leave Encashment:   The employees of the Company are en�tled for leave encashment on yearly basis. The amount 
       accumulated during the year is paid in the next year.

r    Provisions, Con�ngent liabili�es and Con�ngent assets

    A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal obliga�on that is reasonably 
    es�mate, and it is probable that an ou�low of economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on. Provisions 
   are determined by the best es�mate of the ou�low of economic benefits required to se�le the obliga�on at the 
    repor�ng date. Where no reliable es�mate can be made, a disclosure is made as con�ngent liability. A disclosure for 
     con�ngent liability is also made when there is a possible obliga�on or a present obliga�on that may, but probably will 
      not, require an ou�low of resources. Where there is a possible obliga�on or a present obliga�on in respect of which the 
      likelihood of ou�low of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. Con�ngent assets are neither recognized 
      nor disclosed.

s    Cash Flow Statement

      Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted 
   for the effects of transac�ons of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or 
    payments. The cash flows from opera�ng, inves�ng and financing ac�vi�es of the Company are segregated based on 
      the available informa�on.

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 29-May-2025

Palak Sharma
Company Secretary
Mem. No.: ACS74543

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 29-May-2025
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AGM VENUE – 2025

Pratham EPC Projects Limited 
th11  Annual General Mee�ng 

30th September, 2025 at 03.00 pm 

Venue 

Registered Office of the Company, 

A-1101, Sankalp Iconic, Opp. Vikram Nagar,

Iscon Temple Cross Road, S.G. Highway,

Ahmedabad – 380054, Gujarat. 
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